
 

  
 

 
AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Friday, 22 October 2021 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 

 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek 

14 October 2021 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence  

2. Declarations of interest  

 i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. 
ii. Other Interests. 

 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10) 

4. External Audit - Audit Findings Report  

5. Annual Governance Statement (Pages 11 - 30) 

6. Statement of Accounts (Pages 31 - 72) 

7. Redmond Review Update (Pages 73 - 90) 

8. Treasury Management Update (Pages 91 - 100) 

9. Internal Audit Progress Report (Pages 101 - 108) 

10. Internal Audit Annual Report (Pages 109 - 120) 

11. Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit (Pages 121 - 138) 

12. Work Programme  

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Membership of Audit & Accounts Committee 
Councillor J Davies (Chair) Councillor T Hall (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor E Fallows Councillor K Flunder 
Councillor N Hawkins Councillor K J Jackson 
Councillor R Ward Councillor P Wilkinson 

Councillor N Yates Mr P Brough 
Mr H Mawdsley  

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

FRIDAY, 25 JUNE 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor J Davies (Chair)   

 
 Councillors E Fallows, K Flunder, T Hall, N Hawkins, K J Jackson, 

R Ward, P Wilkinson and Messrs. P Brough and H Mawdsley. 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: S Jassal Grant Thornton Management Lead 

 E Bennetts Finance Business Partner 
 CHazeldene 

 
J Betts 

Acting Executive Director (Finance and 

Customer Services) 
Interim Chief Finance Officer 

 J Leak 

K Pointon 

Head of Audit 

Principal Finance Officer 
 P Trafford Member & Community Services Officer 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillor N Yates 
 

30 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

The Chair introduced Mr. John Betts – Interim Chief Finance Officer – who had been 
appointed due to the imminent departure of Claire Hazeldene and would fulfil the 
role until a permanent appointment was made. 

 
A ‘Knowledge & Skills Framework self-assessment’ had been circulated to all 

members of the committee in March 2021 but, to date, only 4 responses had been 
received. Members were reminded to complete the questionnaire if they had not 
already done so, which would assist in both the co-option of independent members 

and the future development requirements for the committee. 
 

Councillors Flunder and Wilkinson declared that they had received COVID Business 
Grants. 
 

31 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Accounts Committee 
held on 12 February 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed by the 

Chair. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit & Accounts Committee - 25 June 2021 
 

2 
 

32 EXTERNAL AUDIT - AUDIT PLAN 
 

Sarah Jassal – Grant Thornton Engagement Manager – presented the plan to 
members with similar headlines to previous plans. Materiality was set at 2% of the 
prior year gross expenditure. The 3 significant risk areas were unchanged. 

 
Planning work had started in March 2021 and the final visit was to commence on 22 

July 2021. The deadline for the Statement of Accounts was 13 September 2021 
which was likely to prove challenging. The committee would be kept informed. 
 

The proposed total audit fee was £56,145, which represented an increase over the 
previous year brought about by the revised code and ISAs which were relevant for 

the 2021/21 audit. The increase was due to be funded directly by the MHCLG. 
 

33 EXTERNAL AUDIT - INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT 

 

The report contributed to the 2-way communication between Grant Thornton and this 

committee, this being required under International Standards on Auditing (UK), 
(ISA(UK)). 
 

The risk assessment constituted a series of questions and the SMDC management 
responses. 

 
The afore-mentioned ‘Skills and Knowledge Questionnaire’ responses were again 
requested in order for a training plan to be formulated. 

 
34 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

Finance Business Partner Emily Bennetts presented the report to members in 
compliance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 
 

The budget had been set pre-COVID and the interest rates during the year had been 
considerably lower than expected. Additionally, grant income from central 
government, together with payment delays on Council Tax and Business Rates had 

caused a fluctuating cashflow effect. All investments had been converted to instant 
access due to the Council’s need to ensure liquidity. An overall average interest rate 

of 0.22% was achieved on the council’s investment portfolio which compared 
favourably with short-term market benchmarks. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Treasury Management Report 2020/21 be 
recommended to Council for APPROVAL. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 Page 4



Audit & Accounts Committee - 25 June 2021 
 

3 
 

35 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 

The update was presented as at 31 May 2021 with everything as expected. There 
had been speculation of an increase in interest rates but this had not happened yet. 
 

The main headlines were:- 
 

 There was no expectation for any increase to the Bank of England base rate 
within the medium term;  
 

 All interest income was forecast to be on target at this early point in the year 
for Investments in financial institutions and also from the Ascent loan and 

Debenture. This was subject to change pending the Ascent Delivery model 
review and any new loan arrangement;  

 

 The borrowing costs budget to support the existing Ascent loan balance and 
general fund borrowing requirement was also forecast on target and would be 

affected by the outcome of the same decisions on the Ascent loan;  
 

 The average return on investments to the end of May was 0.11%, this was 
boosted by the notice account investments, whereas instant access accounts 
earn interest at 0.01%;  

 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £16.1million spread across six 

separate institutions as at 31st May 2021;  
 

 The Council’s external debt was forecast to be £13million by the end of the 
year at an average annual borrowing rate of 0.75%.  

 
RESOLVED – That the Treasury Management position as at 31 May 2021 be    

NOTED. 

 
36 INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 

 

Head of Internal Audit - John Leak – advised members that the Audit Charter 

provided a framework for the operation of the Internal Audit Service and was 
required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which required the 
charter to be approved by the ‘Board’, which for the Council’s purposes was the 

Audit & Accounts Committee. 
 

The PSIAS required that the charter should: 
 

 recognise the mandatory nature of the PSIAS;  

 define the scope of internal audit activities;  

 establish the responsibilities and objectives of internal audit;  

 establish the organisational independence of internal audit;  

 establish the accountability, reporting lines and relationships between the 
Head of Audit and the Audit Committee and those to whom the Head of Audit 
reports to functionally and administratively;  

 

 

Page 5



Audit & Accounts Committee - 25 June 2021 
 

4 
 

 set out the responsibility of the Audit Committee and also the role of the 
statutory officers with regards to internal audit;  

 set out the arrangements that exist within the organisations counter-fraud and 
corruption strategy, requiring the Head of Audit to be notified of all suspected 

or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety, to inform the annual internal audit 
opinion and the risk-based plan;  

 recognise that internal audit’s remit extends to the entire control environment 
of the organisation and not just financial controls;  

 establish internal audit’s right of access to all records, assets, personnel and 

premises, including those of partner organisations where appropriate, and its 
authority to obtain such information and explanations as it considers 

necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.  
 

And that it must: 
 

 define the terms “board” and “senior management” for the purposes of 
internal audit activity;  

 cover the arrangements for appropriate resourcing;  

 define the role of internal audit in any fraud related work; and  

 describe safeguards to limit impairments of independence or objectivity if 
internal audit or the Head of Audit undertakes non-audit activities.  

 
Amendments to the charter previously adopted in 2017 were confined mainly to 

changes in job titles and responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Council’s updated Internal Audit Charter be APPROVED. 

 
37 INTERNAL AUDIT - ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 

 

Work in relation to the Audit Plan 2020/21 had been impacted by the fact that 
internal audit staff had been working in conjunction with other officers on the 

administration of various COVID-related grants to businesses.  
 

The 2020/21 Audit Plan was therefore nearing completion and work had started on 
the 2021/22 plan during June 2021. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Council’s annual Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 be 
APPROVED. 

 

38 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 

The report summarised performance information for the Council’s Internal Audit 
service for the 2020/21 financial year. It included a breakdown of audits in progress 
and completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations made, 

agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 Page 6



Audit & Accounts Committee - 25 June 2021 
 

5 
 

All recommendations had been agreed and, to date, 91% of 2020/21 
recommendations that were due had been implemented. 11 audits had been 

completed during the period 1 February 2021 to 31 May 2021 with 1 Substantial and 
10 Satisfactory assurances given. 3 further audits were shown to be in progress. 
Extensive work had been undertaken by Internal Audit staff on the COVID business 

grant process, meaning that when outstanding audits were finalised, 86% of the 
2020/21 Audit Plan would be completed. Whilst lower than usual, this would not 

affect Internal Audit’s ability to provide the annual audit opinion.  
 
Members queried the CCTV Audit and the arrangements currently in place for 

monitoring and value-for-money. The responsible Head of Service would be 
requested to provide a separate update on this service to a future meeting. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 

 

39 COVID BUSINESS GRANTS - MEASURES TO GUARD AGAINST FRAUD 
 

Claire Hazeldene – Acting Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services) – 
advised members on a series of business grant schemes which were introduced by 
the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy to support 

businesses through the lockdowns and tiered systems brought about by the COVID 
pandemic. 

 
Funding for the various grants had been provided ‘up front’ and many staff from 
across the Alliance had helped out in administering a total of £42,549,977 via 9,199 

applications. Checks had been carried out to verify the entitlement of businesses to 
the payments with various proofs required and Companies House checks carried 

out. A number of government returns had been completed, together with risk 
assessments for possible fraudulent applications. 
 

Of the 9,199 total cases, only 8 had been identified as incorrectly paid and a 
breakdown of these cases was outlined in the report. Only 1 of the cases was 

fraudulent, the other 7 being mistaken applications. 
 
Claire stated that the early stages of the checking process highlighted that some 

records were out of date. The value of having a visiting officer could not be 
understated and it was hoped to re-instate an officer to that position.  

 
Members thanked all staff that had been involved in the process. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 

 

40 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE 
 

Claire Hazeldene presented the report to members confirming that the Financial 

Management Code (FMC) had been introduced in 2019 (pre COVID) by CIPFA in 
recognition of the exceptional financial circumstances faced by local authorities, 

which had been further tested by the pandemic. 
 
 

 
 

 
Page 7



Audit & Accounts Committee - 25 June 2021 
 

6 
 

Under the code, Local Authorities were required to demonstrate good practice by 
referring to the FMC in the Annual Governance Statement. The 1st full year of 

compliance was originally scheduled for 2021/22. However, recognising the extra 
pressures due to COVID, CIPFA had agreed on a more flexible framework where a 
proportionate approach was encouraged. 

 
At this early stage, the Council had conducted an initial high-level review against the 

principles of the code. This was appended to the report by way of a Red Amber 
Green (RAG) assessment. The following areas had been identified where further 
work may be required for full compliance:- 

 

 Financial Procedure Rules require reviewing and updating;  

 Financial resilience reporting to be enhanced utilising tools such as the CIPFA 

Financial Resilience index;  

 Review current consultation processes in respect of the budget setting 

process;  

 Enhance use of balance sheet review tools and cost drivers to input into 
longer-term financial stability and implications of specific projects. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED and that the recommendation for a full 

self-assessment against the principles of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 
also be NOTED.  

 

41 COUNTER FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY 
 

John Leak introduced the strategy as an update to the existing one which had been 

in place for a number of years. 
 

There were no major changes, just minor tweaks to wording and job titles / 
responsibilities. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Council’s updated Counter Fraud & Corruption Strategy be 
APPROVED.  

 
42 WORK PROGRAMME 

 

The Committee considered the Work Programme for 2021/22. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme for 2021/22 be APPROVED. 

 
43 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
RESOLVED - That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government 

Act, 1972,the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or nature of the proceedings 
whereby it is likely that exempt information as defined in Section 

100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach of the 
obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 

100I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to 
the public by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 

 

 
 Page 8



Audit & Accounts Committee - 25 June 2021 
 

7 
 

44 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

The exempt minutes of the meeting of the Audit & Accounts Committee held on 12 
February 2021 were APPROVED as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 

The Chair confirmed that the 15 minute Q and A session with the Council’s auditors 
which had been dispensed with for this meeting would resume at the next meeting. 

 
All members extended their sincere thanks to Claire Hazeldene and their best 
wishes in her new position at Stoke-on-Trent City Council. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 11.40 am 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Audit & Accounts Committee 

 
22 October 2021 

 

 
TITLE: 

 
Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 

SMDC 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Betts – Interim Executive Director 

(Finance, Revenues & Benefits) 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non Specific  

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Annual Governance Statement 

Framework 
 Appendix 2 Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 Regulation 6 (1) (a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the 

Council to conduct a review each financial year of the effectiveness of its 
system of internal control and approve an Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS). 

 
1.2 The statement needs to be prepared in accordance with proper practices in 

relation to accounts and must be approved in advance of the Council 
approving the statement of accounts. ‘Proper practices in relation to accounts’ 
relates to those accounting practices which are contained in a code of practice 

or other document which is identified for the purposes of this provision by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State. Such guidance is contained in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE framework and guidance on ‘Delivering Good Governance in 
Local Government’. 

 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee approve the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21. 
 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 Guidance on the production of the AGS is contained within the 2016 edition of 
CIPFA/SOLACE’s ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 
Framework’. The structure and framework for the production of the AGS is 
summarised in Appendix 1. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



  

 
3.2 In essence, the Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that 

recognises, records and publishes our governance arrangements as defined 

in the CIPFA/SOLACE framework. The AGS includes the following 
information: 

 

 An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound 
system of governance; 

 the purpose of the governance framework; 

 the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the 

governance arrangements; 

 the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 

effectiveness of the governance framework; 

 the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic on governance; 

 an opinion on whether the governance framework continues to be fit for 
purpose and the assurance that can be given that the framework is 
operating adequately in practice; 

 the identification of any significant governance issues and any actions 
taken or proposed to address these issues. 

 
3.3 The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer (the Chief 

Executive) and the most senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint responsibility 

as signatories for its accuracy and completeness. As a corporate document 
the AGS should be owned by all senior officers and Councillors of the 

authority. The signatories need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the 
governance framework for which they are responsible. In order to achieve this 
they will need to rely on many sources of assurance, such as: 

 

 Interim Executive Director (Finance, Revenues & Benefits); 

 Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) & Deputy Chief Executive; 

 Heads of Service; 

 Members; 

 the Head of Audit; 

 performance and risk management; 

 third-parties eg. partnerships; 

 external audit and other review agencies. 
 
3.4 The production of the 2020/21 AGS has been undertaken in line with the 

CIPFA guidance including guidance issued in February 2021 “Application of 
the Good Governance Framework 2020/21”. The process has been co-

ordinated through a Corporate Governance Management Group containing the 
key officers who are given ultimate responsibility for drafting the AGS, 
evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence. This years statement 

includes specific commentary on the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic on 
the Council’s governance arrangements and also includes the conclusion of 

an initial assessment that has been undertaken during the year of the extent to 
which the Council’s financial management arrangements comply with the 
principles of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 (FM Code). 

Page 12



  

3.5 An analysis of the relevant assurances and supporting evidence has been 
undertaken to produce a fully compliant AGS for 2020/21. The AGS is 
attached at Appendix 2 for Councillors consideration and approval. 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The Annual Governance Statement is the formal statement that recognises, 

records and publishes the Council’s governance arrangements as defined in 
the CIPFA/SOLACE framework and therefore helps to confirm effective use of 

financial and other resources to ensure value for money.   
 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 Approve the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement (Recommended). The 
AGS will provide an accurate representation of the governance arrangements 
in place during the year whilst highlighting those areas where improvement is 

required. Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 will be 
achieved. 

 
5.2 Do not approve the 2020/21 Annual Governance Statement (Not 

Recommended). Compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

will not be achieved unless an amended version of the AGS is approved. 
 
 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
None. 

 
6.2 Workforce 

 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 

In resolving any issues that have arisen from the outcome of the 
AGS, it is anticipated that corrective action will be implemented 
within existing budgetary provision. 

 
6.5 Legal 

 
Inadequacies in governance arrangements, if not addressed, pose 
a litigation risk. The extent and nature of such risks will vary 

Page 13



  

depending on the nature and extent of the deficiency and the 
resulting damage/loss (if relevant). However, the suggested action 
to be taken to address the governance weaknesses will assist 

greatly in minimising the risks and potential legal implications 
identified. 

 
6.6 Climate Change 

 

None. 
 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
Key officers who are given ultimate responsibility for drafting the 

AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence have 
been consulted in the compilation process. 

 
6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

The AGS takes assurance from the Council’s Risk Management 
Framework. 

 
 

JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director (Finance, Revenues & Benefits) 

 
Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Contact details 

CIPFA/SOLACE Publication – Delivering Good 

Governance In Local Government: Framework and 
Guidance Notes for English Authorities 2016 Editions 

John Betts 

Interim Executive Director (Finance, 
Revenues & Benefits) 
john.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 

 

 
 

  

Page 14



  

7. Detail 
 
7.1 Introduction 

 

7.1.1 During 2016, CIPFA/SOLACE produced a new Delivering Good Governance 

in Local Government Framework and Guidance Notes for English Authorities. 
The Framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance of 
the Council and provides a structure to help with our approach to governance. 

The Council should therefore test our governance structures and partnerships 
against the principles contained in the Framework by: 

 

 reviewing existing governance arrangements; 

 developing and maintaining an up-to-date local code of governance, 

including arrangements for ensuring ongoing effectiveness;  

 reporting publicly on compliance with our code on an annual basis and on 

how we have monitored the effectiveness of our governance arrangements 
in the year and on planned changes.  

 
7.1.2 The Framework outlines seven core principles of good governance as follows: 

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 

values, and respecting the rule of law; 

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 

 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits; 

 Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
the intended outcomes; 

 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it; 

 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management; 

 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 

deliver effective accountability. 
 
7.1.3 To achieve good governance, each local authority should be able to 

demonstrate that its governance structures comply with the core and sub-
principles contained in the Framework. Each Authority should therefore 

develop and maintain a local code of governance / governance arrangements 
reflecting the principles set out in the Framework.  

 

7.1.4 Local Authorities are required to prepare an Annual Governance Statement in 
order to report publicly on the extent to which they comply with their own code 

of governance, which in turn, is consistent with the good governance principles 
in the Framework. It is this statement that has the legal backing of Regulation 
6 (2) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. HPBC’s current Code of 

Corporate Governance which forms part of the ethical framework of the 
Council, complies with the requirements of the framework and reflects the 

format of the most recent guidance. 
 
 

Page 15



  

7.1.5 The arrangements required for gathering assurances for the preparation of the 
AGS provide an opportunity for authorities to consider the robustness of their 
governance arrangements.  In doing so, authorities need to recognise that this 

is a corporate issue, affecting everyone in the organisation.  It is also important 
to recognise that the purpose of the AGS is not just to be ‘compliant’, but also 

to provide an accurate representation of the arrangements in place during the 
year and to highlight those areas where improvement is required. This will also 
demonstrate to stakeholders what those arrangements are. 

 
7.1.6 Once the AGS has been produced it is required to be reviewed and approved 

by an independent review body of the Council as a separate item from the 
Statement of Accounts. The purpose of this report is to present the 2020/21 
AGS to the members of the Audit & Accounts Committee for consideration and 

approval. 
 

 
7.2 Compilation of the AGS 

 

7.2.1 In drafting the AGS, it is essential to bear in mind its purposes. In essence, the 
AGS is the formal statement that recognises, records and publishes the 

Council’s governance arrangements as defined in the CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework. The flowchart detailed at Appendix 1 sets out the framework for 

compiling the AGS. It identifies some typical dynamics of an AGS that should 

be considered and shows how they can be brought together and evidenced. 
 
7.2.2 The AGS is a key corporate document. The most senior officer (the Chief 

Executive) and the most senior Councillor (the Leader) have joint responsibility 
as signatories for the accuracy and completeness of the AGS. The signatories 

need to ensure that the AGS accurately reflects the governance framework for 
which they are responsible. In order to achieve this they are likely to rely on 
many sources of assurance, such as: 

 

 The Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer - the statutory 

functions undertaken by these two officers provide a key source of 
assurance that the systems and procedures of internal control that are in 

operation are effective, efficient and are being complied with on a routine 
basis. Both officers are involved in the production of the AGS. 
 

 Management – Senior managers are charged with the responsibility of 
ensuring that policies within their service area are complied with and are 

held accountable for their actions/operations in delivering the service and 
achieving objectives. All Directors and Heads of Service were asked to 
complete and sign a Managers Assurance Statement to document the level 

of assurance that they could give for the internal controls in place in their 
service area and their effectiveness with regard to ensuring accountability, 

prudence, VFM, data quality, compliance with policy, Financial Regulations 
and Procedure Rules, Contract Procedure Rules and delivery of the 
Council’s objectives. In providing this assurance, Directors and Heads of 

Service were asked to identify any material issues where they consider the 
controls are not adequate or are absent. In providing such assurance 

statements it is accepted that Managers can only be expected to give 

Page 16



  

reasonable assurance for their service area of activity and not a full 
guarantee. 

 

 Internal Audit - The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) defines 
Internal Audit as “an independent, objective assurance and consulting 

activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance processes.” Internal Audit produces 
an annual report that gives a summary of its work and provides an 

independent and objective opinion on the authority’s activities. The annual 
report and the work of Internal Audit have been used to inform the AGS. A 
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit has been 

undertaken to ensure that reliance can be placed on the work of internal 
audit and its contribution to the AGS. 

 

 Risk Management – the Council’s strategic risk register details those 
issues considered to be a risk which may prevent the Council from 

achieving its corporate objectives and outlines the controls in place to 
mitigate those risks. This source of assurance has been used to inform the 

AGS. 
 

 External Audit and Other Review Agencies – assurance can be taken from 

the work of external bodies such as the Council’s external auditors. Work 
undertaken by the external auditors has been used to inform the Annual 

Governance Statement. 
 

7.2.3 As a corporate document the AGS should be owned by all senior officers and 
Councillors of the authority.  It is essential that there is a buy-in at the top level 
of the organisation; otherwise there is a risk that the preparation of the AGS is 

not perceived as the important task that it is by managers and other staff. If the 
work is delegated to a single officer it is likely to dilute the statement’s 

significance. 
 
7.2.4 At the centre of the production of the 2020/21 statement is a Corporate 

Governance Management Group who are given ultimate responsibility for 
drafting the AGS, evaluating assurances and the supporting evidence and this 

group has been established for a number of years. Each member of the group 
has supplied assurances and evidence to support the various elements of the 
AGS and action points to address weaknesses, some of which are significant 

and warrant specific mention in the AGS itself, have been drawn up. 
 

7.2.5 In accordance with CIPFA guidance issued in February 2021 “Application of 
the Good Governance Framework 2020/21” this year’s statement includes 
specific commentary on the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic on the 

Council’s governance arrangements including details of any significant 
changes, whether the arrangements remain fit for purpose and any new 
challenges or actions needed to restore governance arrangements that might 

have lapsed during the year. 
 

Page 17



  

7.2.6 2020/21 is also a “shadow” year for the implementation of the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code 2019 (FM Code). In accordance with the CIPFA guidance 
this year’s statement includes the conclusion of an initial assessment that has 

been undertaken during the year of the extent to which the Council’s financial 
management arrangements comply with the principles of the FM Code and 

details of the steps the Council is taking to ensure full compliance. 
 
 
7.3 The Statement 

 

7.3.1 The assurances and evidence have been evaluated and the AGS, prepared in 
accordance with recommended guidance, is attached as Appendix 2. The 

statement is structured as follows: - 

 An acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound 
system of governance; 

 the purpose of the governance framework; 

 the key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the 

governance arrangements; 

 the process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the governance framework; 

 the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic on governance; 

 an opinion on whether the governance framework continues to be fit for 

purpose and the assurance that can be given that the framework is 
operating adequately in practice; 

 the identification of any significant governance issues and any actions 
taken or proposed to address these issues. 

 

7.3.2 In compiling an AGS, issues that are considered to fall short of the expected 
standards (whether or not set out in the organisation’s local code of corporate 

governance) could arise.  In this case a decision needs to be made about how 
significant the issue is and whether or not it needs to be commented on in the 
Statement. It is not possible to give a single definition as to what constitutes a 

“significant governance issue” and judgement has to be exercised. 
Judgements are therefore based on the following factors:- 

 the issue has seriously prejudiced or prevented achievement of a principal 
objective; 

 the issue has resulted in a need to seek additional funding to allow it to be 
resolved, or has resulted in significant diversion of resources from another 
service area; 

 the issue has led to a material impact on the accounts; 

 the Head of Audit has reported on it as significant, for this purpose, in the 

Internal Audit Annual Report; 

 the issue, or its impact, has attracted significant public interest or has the 

potential to seriously damage the reputation of the Council; 

 the issue has resulted in formal action being taken by the Chief Financial 
Officer and/or Monitoring Officer. 

 
 

Page 18



  

7.3.3 The 2019/20 AGS contained two significant internal control issues, one of 
which has been satisfactorily addressed during 2020/21 (see 7.3.4 below). As 
there is no further action required on this issue, it has therefore been omitted 

from the 2020/21 AGS. One further significant issue highlighted in the 2019/20 
AGS has not been fully addressed during the year as this is still ongoing and is 

therefore included again within the 2020/21 AGS as a significant issue. No 
new significant issues were highlighted during the assurance process for 
2020/21. 

 
7.3.4 The table below details the significant governance issues that remain at the 

end of 2020/21 together with the action that was and is being taken to address 
these issues: 

 
Governance Issue Action taken during 

2020/21 

Continuing Action 

 

Achievement of Corporate 
Objectives due to Covid-19 
pandemic. 

 The potential impact of 
the Covid-19 pandemic 
on the Council’s ability 

to achieve its Corporate 
Objectives continues to 
be  assessed. 

 A COVID-19 Recovery 
Strategy has been 
agreed and recovery 

plans are being 
developed to address 
any issues arising from 

the pandemic that affect 
the Council’s ability to 
achieve its Corporate 

Objectives. 

Affect on the Council’s 
governance arrangements 
following the departure of 

Alliance Leadership Team 
members. 

 The Executive Director 
(Transformation) was 
appointed as Chief 
Executive and the 

Deputy Director and 
Head of Finance fulfilled 
the role of Acting 

Executive Director 
(Finance & Customer 
Services). These 

temporary management 
arrangements  therefore  
ensured effective 

continuity of services. 

 An internal audit of 
Corporate Governance 

arrangements was 
completed and achieved 
satisfactory assurance 

with a small number of 
targeted improvements 
made to procedures. 

 No further action is 
required.  

 

7.3.5 The significant issues identified in the 2020/21 AGS highlight weaknesses in 
the Council’s governance framework. If these issues are not addressed then 

the Council could be facing a range of risks including, in a worst case 
scenario, breaches of legislation, breaches of internal procedures/guidelines, 
financial losses, insurance claims, etc. The actions identified for each 

significant issue will, if implemented, minimise the risks faced by the Council. 
No system of review can give full assurance that all risks have been minimised 

Page 19



  

and all controls have been operating effectively throughout the year, only 
reasonable assurance can be given. 

 

7.3.6 Progress in addressing the governance issues identified and outlined during 
the AGS assurance gathering process, both significant and non-significant, 

and their required actions will be monitored by the Corporate Governance 
Management Group during the following financial year and reported to the 
Audit & Accounts Committee. 

 
 

Page 20



APPENDIX 1 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

Authority & 
Directorate Policies, 
Business Plans and 

Risk Registers 

 

Annual Governance 

Statement 
Framework - Key documents/process guidelines  
• Performance management 

• Business strategy and planning process 
• Budget and budgetary control 
• Local code of corporate governance 

• Project management/  Risk Management / counter Fraud 
Policy 

• Ethical Governance 
• Policies, procedures, codes of conduct 

• Partnership protocol 

Approval by Committee or by 

members of body meeting as a whole 

Corporate Group with 
responsibility for drafting 
AGS evaluate assurances 

and supporting evidence 

Ongoing assurance on adequacy and 

effectiveness of controls over key risks 

Assurances by 

directors/servi

ce heads 

Financial  

control 

assurance 

Other sources 

of assurance 
(including 

third-party) 

External Audit  Risk 

Management 

Performance 
Management & 

Data Quality 

Internal Audit  Members’ 

assurance 

Review of the 
effectiveness of the 

system of  
Internal Audit 

 

 

 

 
Legal and 
Regulatory  

 Assurance 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FRAMEWORK 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020-21 

 
 
SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted 
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
In discharging this overall responsibility, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council is responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate 
governance, which is consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is on our website at 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Executive Director & Monitoring Officer. 
This statement explains how Staffordshire Moorlands District Council has complied with the code 
and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, regulation 
6(1)(b), which requires all relevant authorities to prepare an annual governance statement. 
 
In accordance with CIPFA guidance issued in February 2021 “Application of the Good Governance 
Framework 2020/21” this statement includes specific commentary on the impacts of the 
coronavirus pandemic on the Council’s governance arrangements including details of any 
significant changes, whether the arrangements remain fit for purpose and any new challenges or 
actions needed to restore governance arrangements that might have lapsed during the year. 
 
2020/21 is a “shadow” year for the implementation of the CIPFA Financial Management Code 2019 
(FM Code). In accordance with the CIPFA guidance this statement includes the conclusion of an 
initial assessment that has been undertaken during the year of the extent to which the Council’s 
financial management arrangements comply with the principles of the FM Code and details of the 
steps the Council is taking to ensure full compliance. 
 
 
THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which 
the authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with 
and leads its communities. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic 
objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services 
and value for money. 
 
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk 
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives 
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 
system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the 
risks to the achievement of Staffordshire Moorlands District Council’s policies, aims and objectives, 
to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically. 
 
The governance framework has been in place at Staffordshire Moorlands District Council for the 
year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts. 

Page 23

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 
THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance in 
accordance with the core principles of good governance outlined within the CIPFA/SOLACE 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016. 
 
There are seven core principles of good governance identified in the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 as follows: 
 

 Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting 
the rule of law. 

 Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits. 

 Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended 
outcomes. 

 Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals 
within it. 

 Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management. 

 Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver effective 
accountability. 

 
Further detail of how the Staffordshire Moorland District Council’s governance framework supports 
the achievement of these core principles and their related sub-principles is outlined in the Council’s 
Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
CIPFA recognise that the impact of the pandemic means that there might be more changes than 
usual to the governance arrangements of the Council and that some updates to the Code of 
Corporate Governance may be needed as a result of the annual review. The impacts of the 
pandemic on the governance arrangements as set out in this Code and any updates required as a 
result of these are therefore outlined within the Council’s  Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
Where significant governance issues are identified they are clearly highlighted in this statement 
together with actions that are taken during the year and future actions proposed to minimise the 
risks to the Council. Progress in addressing significant governance issues identified and their 
required actions are monitored by the Corporate Governance Management Group during the 
following financial year and reported to the Audit & Accounts Committee. 
 

 
REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a 
review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. 
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority 
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the 
Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and 
other review agencies and inspectorates.  
 
The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the 
governance framework is ongoing throughout the year and includes: 
 
 The authority; 
 

 The ongoing review of the Council’s Constitution by Members and Senior Officers of the 
Council via the Constitution Review Working Party. 

Page 24



 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 
 The ongoing review of existing corporate policies and production and approval of new or 

revised policies and procedures in accordance with best practice. 
 

 The Annual Governance Statement process incorporates a review of the local Code of 
Corporate Governance against CIPFA/SOLACE best practice to ensure that the Council’s 
approach to corporate governance is both adequate and effective in practice. 

 
 the executive; 
 

 The continued operation of clear policy and decision making through the Cabinet and 
Regulatory Committees. 

 
 the audit committee/overview and scrutiny committees/risk management committee; 

 
 The Audit & Accounts Committee’s composition and terms of reference are based upon 

CIPFA guidance and include reviewing the work of the Internal Audit service and any 
implications arising from their findings and opinion on the adequacy of internal controls and 
the adequacy of policies and practices to ensure compliance with statutory and other 
guidance. The Committee are also responsible for overseeing production of the Council’s 
Annual Governance Statement, and to review and recommend/approve its adoption as 
necessary. 

 
 Formal reporting mechanisms to members to review and monitor the work of the Internal 

Audit Service through quarterly reports to Audit & Accounts Committee, including an annual 
report to Audit & Accounts Committee containing an opinion statement on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. For 2020/21, 
Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that the Council’s governance 
arrangements including risk management and systems of internal control were operating 
adequately and effectively. 

 
 The continued development and embedding of a risk management culture within the 

Council driven by the corporate Risk Management Group including reviewing the Council’s 
risk register and associated action plans and ensuring that appropriate management action 
is taken to minimise / eliminate risk. Risk Management updates are reported to the Audit & 
Accounts Committee and the Risk Management Strategy is reviewed biennially. 

 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees review decisions made by Cabinet and areas of 

concern and also fulfil a policy development role. Members can “call-in” a decision that has 
been made by the Cabinet when they consider the decision is not in accordance with the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 

 the standards committee; 

 
 The Committee is responsible for the ethical framework of the Council, working closely with 

the monitoring officer. The terms of reference include advising members on conduct issues 
and ensuring the promotion and maintenance of the highest standards of conduct by 
elected and co-opted members of the Council. 

 
 chief financial officer; 

 
 The CFO is a key member of the “Alliance Leadership Team” (ALT) and “Alliance 

Management Team” (AMT), which are the most senior officer bodies charged with the 
leadership of the Council. That role includes helping to develop and implement strategy and 
to resource and deliver the Council’s strategic objectives sustainably and in the public  
interest. 

 

Page 25



 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 The CFO is actively involved in and able to bring influence to bear on, all material business 
decisions to ensure the immediate and longer term implications, opportunities and risks are 
considered, and alignment with the Council’s overall financial strategy achieved. 

 
 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council’s financial management arrangements conform to 

the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial 
Officer in Local Government. 
 

 The Council, along with Alliance partner High Peak Borough Council, agreed to establish a 
joint venture partnership with Ansa - a subsidiary of Cheshire East Council - to deliver 
waste collection, street cleaning, grounds maintenance and fleet management services. 
The collaborative arrangement has been assessed to be a joint operation and therefore is 
consolidated into the single entity financial statements of Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Council. 
 

 The Council established a joint venture company with Your Housing Limited.  Information 
about the Council’s interests in the Joint Venture is contained in more detail in the Group 
Accounts. 

 
 internal audit; 

 
 Internal Audit review services and functions based on a risk assessed audit plan, in order to 

provide an independent opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal control. Audit reports detailing the findings of each review are issued to Heads of 
Service, the Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer and where appropriate, the 
Executive Director & Monitoring Officer and Chief Executive. 

 
 Audit recommendations for improvements require management agreement, and 

implementation is monitored and escalated in accordance with formally agreed escalation 
procedures. Regular updates on audit recommendation agreement and implementation are 
reported to the Audit & Accounts Committee. 

 
 The Authority’s internal audit arrangements conform to the requirements of the CIPFA 

Statement of the Role of the Head of Internal Audit. Internal Audit operates in accordance 
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The service is subject to regular review by 
the Council’s External Auditors who place reliance on their work. An annual review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal audit is also undertaken and an independent external 
review previously concluded that the internal audit provision within the Council complies 
with the expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 
 

 other explicit review/assurance mechanisms; 

 
 The Council operates a performance framework which is aligned to the Council’s four key 

aims and measures performance against indicators and actions that are focused on the 
delivery of corporate objectives. 

 
 The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer produces quarterly and annual financial 

reports which indicate financial performance against forecasts. 
 
 Directors and Heads of Service complete and sign annual Managers Assurance 

Statements confirming their arrangements for ensuring data quality and the existence, 
operation and effectiveness of controls within the service areas for which they are 
responsible 

 
 External review of the Council’s internal control environment by the external auditors Grant 

Thornton, including a review of internal audit’s work. 
 

Page 26



 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 The FM Code has been introduced by CIPFA in recognition of the exceptional financial 
circumstances faced by local authorities, which have been further tested as a result of the 
coronavirus pandemic. The FM Code requires authorities to demonstrate that the 
processes they have in place satisfy the principles of good financial management, which is 
an essential part of ensuring that public sector finances are sustainable. The FM Code 
identifies risks to financial sustainability and introduces a framework of assurance. The first 
full year of compliance with the FM Code was originally scheduled for 2021/22. However, in 
recognition of the pressures that have been placed on Local Authorities in dealing with the 
coronavirus pandemic, CIPFA has concluded that while the first year of compliance can 
remain as 2021/2022 (which CIPFA has identified as being a ‘shadow year’), it can do so 
within a more flexible framework where a proportionate approach is encouraged. An initial 
high-level review against the principles of the FM Code has been undertaken and this 
indicates that the Council is generally complying with the overall principles of the CIPFA 
Financial Management code, with only moderate improvements likely to be required within 
some specific areas of focus. A full self-assessment of the Council’s current processes, 
procedures and governance arrangements will be undertaken to understand compliancy 
against the FM Code. This full assessment will be led by the Executive Director & Chief 
Financial Officer in liaison with the Alliance Leadership Team. This will be reported to the 
Audit & Accounts Committee during 2021/22. 

 
We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the 
governance framework by the Audit & Accounts Committee, and that the arrangements continue to 
be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework. The areas already 
addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new actions planned are outlined below. 
 
 
IMPACTS OF THE CORONAVIRUS PANDEMIC ON GOVERNANCE 

 
The coronavirus pandemic has had, and will continue to have for some time, a significant impact 
on the operations of the Council. Over the period of review this has involved changes to business-
as-usual arrangements, the introduction of new activities and new ways of working. Over the 
longer term it will have an impact on changes to priorities, programmes, strategies and plans. The 
Council has also learnt from new ways of working introduced in response to the pandemic and the 
response to the pandemic has speeded up some areas of change. 
 
 Adaptions to reflect new ways of working and emergency arrangements; 

 
 Throughout the pandemic the Council has facilitated staff to work from home where this 

was possible. Frontline staff who provide services face-to-face have been equipped with 
the required PPE to ensure that they can work safely.  
 

 Wellbeing and resilience support for staff has been revised to reflect the new ways of 
working.  
 

 The Council has developed an agile working policy in consultation with staff 
representatives. 

 
 Health & safety and risk assessments have been updated to reflect the required new 

procedures. These include specific amendments to allow safe working in all Council offices 
/ buildings.  
 

 ICT security enhancements have been implemented to reflect home working. 
 

 Decision-making processes and arrangements for councillor meetings have been revised to 
allow for greater delegation and remote attendance in line with the provisions of the 
coronavirus legislation. 

Page 27



 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 Agency, joint working arrangements, strategic co-ordination have all been strengthened to 
address compliance with covid regulations and enforcement issues. 
 

 Additional funding streams have been applied to support outbreak management and local 
test and trace arrangements. 

 
 changes to ‘business as usual’ activities including cessation or reduced frequency or 

scale of activities; 

 
 There was minimal temporary suspension of a number of non-critical service functions to 

allow for re-focusing of resources in response to the pandemic. 
 
 A number of services have been reviewed to consider ongoing additional demands post 

pandemic. This will ensure that there is sufficient capacity to provide for new demands.  
 
 longer term changes to priorities, programmes, strategies and plans as a result of the 

impact of the pandemic on the organisation and the local area; 

 
 Service plans have been reviewed and amended to reflect the impacts of the pandemic. 
 
 The timescales for the delivery of projects within the Council’s Capital Programme have 

been amended to reflect the impacts of the pandemic.   
 
 The Council is continuing to identify and track the  longer term impacts of the pandemic in 

order to continue to ensure that core activities continue. 
 

 The learning gained from the pandemic is being used to inform new ways of working in 
order to continue to realise the benefits of positive changes e.g. home working, remote 
meetings, improved partnership working etc. 
 

 The Council has agreed a COVID-19 recovery strategy which includes five workstreams – 
reinstatement of services; economic recovery; community recovery; financial recovery; and 
positive legacy.  

 
 
OPINION 

 
The review of the effectiveness of the governance framework show that the arrangements continue 
to be fit for purpose and reasonable assurance can be given that the framework is operating 
adequately in practice. No review can provide absolute assurance; this statement is intended to 
provide reasonable assurance that there is an ongoing process for reviewing the governance 
framework and it’s operation in practice. 
 
Whilst the governance framework is considered to be adequate, any issues deemed to be 
significant that need to be addressed to further enhance the Council’s governance arrangements 
are outlined below with the actions to be taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 

Page 7 of 7 

 

SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
During the 2020/21 financial year one significant governance issue has been identified. This is 
detailed in the table below together with the action that was and is being taken to address the 
issue: 
 

Governance Issue Action taken during 

2020/21 

Continuing Action 

 

Achievement of Corporate 
Objectives due to Covid-19 

pandemic. 

 The potential impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic on the 

Council’s ability to achieve 
it’s Corporate Objectives 
continues to be  assessed. 

 A COVID-19 Recovery 
Strategy has been agreed 

and recovery plans are being 
developed to address any 
issues arising from the 

pandemic that affect the 
Council’s ability to achieve its 
Corporate Objectives. 

 
We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance 
our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review. 
 
Signed:  
 
……………………………………………………  ……. October 2021……… 
 
Councillor S Ralphs 
Leader                  Date  
 
……………………………………………………  ……. October 2021……… 
 
Andrew P Stokes BA (Hons) MBA CPFA MCIH CIMSPA 
Chief Executive                Date  
 
on behalf of Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM xx 

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Report to Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

22
nd

 October 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A : Staffordshire Moorlands Draft Statement of Accounts   

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/article/1331/Annual-statement-of-

accounts   

Appendix B: Guide to the Statement of Accounts  

 

Appendix C: Chief Finance Officer Review of Accounts 

Appendix D: Glossary of Financial Terms  

1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 To allow for the scrutiny of the Statement of Accounts 2020/21, in compliance 
with the legislative provisions relating to financial reporting and the Council’s 

commitment to transparency and accountability in the stewardship of public 
funds.   

 
2. Recommendation 

 

2.1 That Members approve the Statement of Accounts 2020/21.  
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the 

preparation of the Council’s financial statements. These, prepared in 
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code of Practice’) and based on 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), are required to present ‘a 

TITLE:   Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:  Councillor Sybil Ralphs – Leader 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

 Stephen Robinson – Principal Finance Officer 

(Financial Reporting) 

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-specific 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/article/1331/Annual-statement-of-accounts
https://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/article/1331/Annual-statement-of-accounts


true and fair view’ of the financial position of the Council at the accounting  
date (period ended 31st March 2021).  

 
3.2 Part 2, Section 8(2) of The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 

state that the Chief Finance Officer signs the Statement of Accounts by 31st 
May each year certifying that the accounts represent a ‘true and fair view’ of 
the Authority’s financial position. Owing to the Covid 19 pandemic this 

deadline was pushed back to the 31st July 2021. The unaudited Statement of 
Accounts was published by this deadline. 

 
3.3 In response to the Covid 19 pandemic the new deadline for publication for the 

final, audited accounts is 30th September 2021 (normally 31st July). The 

formal public inspection period was also delayed and commenced on 7th 
September for 15 working days. The External Auditors (Grant Thornton) 

indicated that they would not meet the deadline of 30th September, so this 
Audit committee meeting was rearranged. A note on the delay was published 
on the Council’s website,  in accordance with Regulation 10, paragraph (2a) 

of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (as amended by the Accounts 
and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2021). There is no formal 

sanction for late publication of the audited Statement of Accounts1
. A report 

elsewhere on this agenda (“Update on Reviews, Progress & Impact of 
Proposed Changes to the Local Audit System”) indicates that late delivery of 

audited accounts is a systemic issue and not one unique to this Authority or 
its external auditors.  

 

3.4 The Council also received a letter from Grant Thornton, on 22 September 

2021, published under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice. The National Audit 
Office has updated its guidance to auditors to allow them to postpone 
completion of work on arrangements to secure value for money and instead  

focus resources on the delivery of the opinion on the financial statement. As a 
result, the external auditors expect to issue their Annual Report, including the 

commentary on arrangements to secure value for money, no later than 31 
January 2022. The committee will, therefore, need to consider the Annual 
Report at a later meeting.  

 

3.5 Covid 19 has also directly impacted the financial statements by significantly 

increasing the level of uncertainty included in the assumptions behind the 
estimated values reported by the Authority. The items in the Authority’s 
Balance Sheet at 31 March 2021 for which there is, therefore, a significant 

risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year, are asset 
valuations and the pension liability. 

 
3.6 Members’ are asked to approve the audited Statement of Accounts 2020/21 

(see Appendix A for draft accounts).   In doing so, the Chair of the Audit & 

                                                                 
1
 Public Sector Audit Appointments and the National Audit Office used to report a l ist of Authorities publishing 

their audited Statement of Accounts late, but  with 55% of local authorities’ March 2020 accounts not 

receiving an audit opinion by the revised deadline of 30 November 2020, this procedure appears to have been 
abandoned. 91% of Authorities missed the September 30 2021 deadline for publication of the audited 2020/21 
Statement of Accounts.      

Page 32



Accounts Committee will sign the accounts at this meeting.  At the time of 
preparing this report, the audit of the Council’s accounts was substantially 

complete, but had not been finalised. Further amendments may be required, 
as outlined in the Audit Findings Report. If these are not material (as defined 

by the External Auditors), then Members are asked to approve the Statement 
of Accounts subject to any non-material amendments, to be agreed between 
the Chair and Section 151 Officer and reported back to the next committee 

meeting.  
 

3.7 By formally approving the Statement of Accounts, the Audit & Accounts 
Committee will be demonstrating their confidence in the responsible financial 
officer (Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer) and in the process by 

which the Statement of Accounts has been prepared.  The accounts have 
been externally audited by Grant Thornton and they will set out their opinion 

and findings within the Audit Findings Report presented as part of this 
meeting. 
 

3.8 Training sessions on the Statement of Accounts have been delivered in the 
recent past and a further session may be organised in due course, following 

the Audit Committee skills assessment that is currently in train. To assist 
Members, a guide to the Statement of Accounts has been produced and is 
attached as Appendix B. This guide has been produced for both Staffordshire 

Moorlands DC and High Peak BC and uses examples from both authorities.  
 

3.9 To further aid Members, Appendix C provides the Chief Finance Officer 
review, which challenges some of the more material financial movements 
compared to the previous year and requests further clarification on certain 

areas. It follows on from the suggested areas for scrutiny outlined in Appendix 
B. A glossary is also attached as Appendix D. The Statement of Accounts 

already has its own glossary of financial terms, but this more general glossary 
is designed to assist Members with broader local government financial 
terminology that they may come across as part of their considerations on the 

committee.    
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 
 

4.1  The preparation of the Statement of Accounts is dictated by legislation. As 

such it is not directly linked to a corporate priority, although the Council is 
committed to the guiding principle of transparency and accountability in the 

stewardship of public funds.    
 
 

5. Options and Analysis 

 

5.1 The Statement of Accounts is primarily a record of fact. Areas of discretion 
are treated in accordance with guidance and professional judgement.  

Consequently there are no other options to consider. 
 

5.2 The Statement of Accounts have been subject to external audit by Grant 

Thornton. 
 
6. Implications 

Page 33



 
6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)  

 None 
 

6.2  Workforce  
 None 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/ Equality Impact Assessment  
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 

Diversity policies. 
 

6.4  Financial Considerations 

There are a substantial number of financial considerations throughout the 
Statement of Accounts. 

 
6.5 Legal      

 
There are a number of legal requirements in respect of financial reporting that 
the Council is required to comply with, which are detailed in the appropriate 

sections within the Statement of Accounts.  
 

6.6 Climate Change    
None 
 

6.7 Internal and External Consultation  
The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 require the Statement of Accounts 

and supporting documents to be made available for public inspection for 30 
full working days prior to the ‘appointed date for exercise of public rights’ .  
Owing to Covid 19, Local Authorities were granted an extension and flexibility 

in ensuring the public could exercise this right. The Council gave formal 
notification to the public of a 15 working day period commencing 7th 

September. 
 

6.8 Risk Assessment 

There are a number of areas of risk embedded throughout the Statement of 
Accounts. These have been individually addressed and treated in accordance 

with guidance and professional judgement. 
 
 

Page 34



 

John Betts 
Interim Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer 

Background Papers Location Contacts 

2020/21 Closure of Accounts files 

(various) 

Joint Finance Team, 

Moorlands House, Leek 

Keith Pointon                            

Acting Head of Finance  

Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4193 

Stephen Robinson            

Principal Finance Officer 

(Financial Reporting)                 

Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4194 

Sharon Hall                           

Finance Business Partner         

Tel. 01538 395400 Ext. 4246 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

 

 

STATEMENT OF 
ACCOUNTS TRAINING 

Guidance for Audit & Regulatory Committee and Audit & Accounts 
Committee 

 

  

      

OCTOBER 2021 
Finance Service  

Page 37



1 
 

Introduction 

Local authority audit committee members are not expected to be financial experts, but they 
are responsible (amongst other things) for approving and issuing the authority’s financial 
statements. They also play a key role in ensuring accountability and value for money are 
demonstrated to the public.  

These notes provide an overview to assist Audit committee members to discharge their 
responsibilities.  It tells you what you can expect to find in our accounts and what to look out 
for. It takes specific examples from past Statement of Accounts from both High Peak 
Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. The Statement of Accounts 
can run to 100+ pages and can be technical in parts and, thus, a challenging read. This 
guide aims to provide a simple introduction and point you to a few key areas where you may 
want to scrutinise Council officers (and the external auditors) in a bit more detail.   

It is structured as follows: 

 Overview of the financial accounts 

 A guide to the main areas of the Statement of Accounts: 

o Narrative Report 

o Movement in Reserves 

o Income and Expenditure statement 

o Balance sheet 

o Cash flow statement 

 Other things to look out for in the statements  

 Key summary (what you absolutely need to look at) 

 Glossary of terms and acronyms you may come across  

Each section finishes with a series of potential issues / questions that you may wish to 
consider further and specific examples of previous years’ statements are used to illustrate 
some key reporting principles.     

  

  

 

  

Page 38



2 
 

Introduction 

 
Local authorities are required to publish accounts every year that show how they spend 

their money. These cover a financial year: for example, 2020/21 accounts would cover the 
period from 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021.  

Councils publish draft accounts usually in the early summer. Over 30 days, the public then 

has the right to inspect the accounts and ask questions about them to the auditor. 
The audited accounts are then published – the deadline for this (30 September for the 

2020/21) is set by Government (and has recently been put back from 31 July due to the 
Covid-19 pandemic).  

Accounts are prepared according to the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom, published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy, CIPFA. This, in turn, is consistent with International Financial Reporting 
Standards.  

Council accounts differ from company accounts because there are different legal and 
statutory requirements for them. For example, Council accounts contain statements 
separately for the General Fund, the Housing Revenue Account and the Collection Fund. 
The General Fund is where most of the Council’s income and expenditure is recorded. 
Housing related spending and income (where applicable) is recorded in a separate Housing 
Revenue Account. The Collection Fund records Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates 
(business rates) related statements. 
 
The financial statements primarily follow accounting standards rather than local government 
legislation. Accounting standards measure the resources that have been generated and 
consumed in the year, including such things as the use of property (depreciation) and the 
value of pensions benefits earned by employees. However, local government legislation 
determines how much of the authority’s expenditure needs to be met from council tax each 
year. It is this latter approach that the Council uses during the year to monitor, manage and 
report on. Therefore, there is a mismatch between the approach adopted throughout the 
year and the approach used to produce the Statement of Accounts.  This is worth bearing in 
mind, as it is often the reason for confusion (for example, it is why the outturn position 
reported at year end isn’t the same as the surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure 
statement in the accounts). The Expenditure Funding Analysis provides an explanation and 
reconciliation between the General Fund outturn and the surplus / deficit on the 
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure statement.  
   
Accounting is both a science and an art. Some things in the accounts are our best estimate, 
rather than a definitive measurement. For example, the estimated value of assets can 
change, or the estimate of how much council tax or business rates will actually get collected 
may turn out to be wrong. So, it’s worth considering how these estimates have been derived 
and whether they chime with your understanding of activity at the Council.  
   
The Councils’ accounts start with a narrative report. This provides some context (such as 
local geography and demographic and social indicators). It also summarises the financial 
performance of the council and the different statements that follow in the accounts. It’s a 
useful introduction, as it doesn’t tend to be too technical or number-heavy.   
 
There then follows the audited financial statements, which must be approved by Elected 
Members.  The core financial statements include statements on the following: movement in 

Page 39



3 
 

reserves, income and expenditure, balance sheet and cash flow. Further detail on each of 
these statements follows. These are numerical representations of a council’s financial 
position and can be hard to understand without context. They are accompanied by notes, 
which are longer than the actual statements themselves, but which need to be read to 
understand the detail. 
 
In brief: 
 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows the accounting cost in the 

year of providing services rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. The 

main factors in the move from surplus to deficit are capital depreciation, revaluation 

and pensions charges. 

 

 The Balance Sheet shows the value of the assets and liabilities recognised by the 
Council.  

 

 The Cash Flow Statement summarises the cash that has been paid to us and which 
we have paid to other organisations and individuals.  

 

 The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in year on the different 

reserves held by the Council, analysed into usable reserves (i.e. those that can be 
used to fund spending or reduce taxation) and other reserves 

 
There are also other financial statements, because in addition to the General Fund where 
most of a council’s income and expenditure is, housing related spending and income is 
recorded in a separate Housing Revenue Account. The other financial statements also 
include the Collection Fund, which records Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates (business 
rates) related statements. 
 
   

Page 40



4 
 

Narrative Statement 

The purpose of the narrative statement is to provide a commentary on the financial 
statements. It includes an explanation of key events and their effect on the financial 

statements (for example, the impact of Covid-19). It should, therefore, explain things in plain 
English and avoid much of the technical terminology in the detailed financial statements. It 
provides a useful overview of the council’s finances for the past year (and into the future by 

summarising the Medium Term Financial Plan) in a more accessible style than the detailed 
financial statements. To that extent it should be essential reading for Audit committee 

members and, more broadly, all Councillors. 

The narrative report covers helpful contextual information, such as how the authority is 
structured and governed and some demographic and social indicators. It summarises the 
financial performance of the council and the different statements that follow, as well as gives 
an overview of where the council’s funding comes from and how it is used. This varies from 
year to year, but there is often useful information relating to changes in funding, pilot 
schemes the council is involved in and so on.  

The information included in the narrative statement should not be a surprise and should be 
familiar to Elected Members from budget monitoring reports provided during the course of 
the year. The narrative statement also reconciles the year end financial position that was 
reported to Elected Members (the outturn) to the statutory financial accounts. It does this in 
the “how the money was spent” section, where there is a summary table and a further 
reference to the  Expenditure and Funding Analysis, which provides a more detailed analysis 
and reconciliation.  
 
Key financial information should be clearly explained and presentation is in a number of 
formats (for example, pie charts and bar charts as well as tables). This should help present 
financial information in a graphical way that makes it easier to understand.  
 
The narrative statement is also useful for providing an overview of Council priorities and if 
you are not familiar with reading accounts or aren’t particularly financially literate, it is the 
best place to start without diving straight into the detail of the number-heavy detailed 
accounting statements. 

Issues to consider: 

Does the narrative statement provide a clear summary of the authority’s financial 
performance and financial position at the year end?  

Is the summary in line with your expectations? Is the financial performance in line with 
budget reports? Are the key events described in the narrative statement those you 
expected to see?  

Is there a better way that this information could be presented or communicated? 

 

  

Page 41



5 
 

Movement in Reserves Statement 

Reserves represent the Authority’s net worth and show its spending power. Reserves are 
analysed into two categories: usable and unusable.  

Usable reserves result from the authority’s activities and can be spent in the future and 
generally include the general fund, earmarked reserves and the capital receipts reserve. The 
level of usable reserves, the spending plans of the authority and other sources of funding will 
determine how much council tax needs to be raised.  

Unusable reserves derive from accounting adjustments and cannot be spent (they are 
required to adjust between accounting practice and the funding basis). They include the 
pensions reserve, revaluation reserve and capital adjustment account. Unusable reserves 
(such as the pensions Reserve) with debit balances will need to be funded in the future, 
even if it is over a long period, so increases in these balances show an increasing burden on 
future taxpayers. 

Statutory transfers are made in and out of these reserves For example, accounting 
standards require depreciation to be charged to the General Fund to represent the cost of 
assets used in the delivery of services. Statute requires that all capital transactions are 
removed from the General Fund. Depreciation is therefore taken out of the General Fund 
and replaced with the minimum revenue provision (MRP). The MRP represents the 
authority’s estimate of how much it should contribute to capital expenditure each year and is 
approved by Members at the start of every year.  

There’s more detail on these reserves below.  

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement from the start of the year to 

the end on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable’ and ‘unusable’ 
reserves. It shows how the movements in year of the authority’s reserves are broken down 
between gains and losses incurred in accordance with accounting practices and the 
statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax [or rents] 
for the year.  

Total income or expenditure for the year should correspond to figures in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). The closing balances in 
turn should correspond to those on the Balance Sheet. The statement should also show any 

transfers between the different reserves, such as release of capital grants to income and 
expenditure or movements between usable and unusable reserves. 

Usable Reserves usually consist of the following:  

 General Fund Balance, which is a statutory fund to hold the balance that is not  
earmarked for other spend 

 Earmarked General Fund Reserves (and HRA balances) for specific future spend, 
often detailed in the notes  

 Housing Revenue Account Balance, which holds balances from the HRA for future 
expenditure relating to council properties 

 Major Repairs Reserve for funding capital expenditure on the council’s housing stock 

 Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve, which holds capital grants with no outstanding 
grant conditions but are yet to be used on capital expenditure 

Page 42



6 
 

 Capital Receipts Reserve for funds the Council has received from the sale of assets, 
as these can by statute only be used to fund capital expenditure. 

Unusable Reserves consist of balances that are held to protect the council’s financial 
situation against the revaluation of assets or financial instruments, losses of council tax or 
business rate income and the like. Unusable Reserves usually consist of: 

 Capital Adjustment Account, which contains entries relating to the financing of capital 
expenditure 

 Revaluation Reserve, which reflects movements in the value of assets 

 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account or Financial Instruments Revaluation 
Reserve, which is held for re-measurement of the council’s financial instruments  

 Pensions Reserve is usually large; it complies with statutory accounting requirements 
to absorb the timing differences arising from accounting and funding for pensions  

 Collection Fund Adjustment Account, which manages the differences arising from the 
recognition of council tax income in the CIES as it falls due from council taxpayers, 
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General 
Fund from the Collection Fund 

The reserves are an often overlooked part of the Council’s accounts. However, as councils 
are legally required to balance their books and cannot run a deficit, changes in reserves can 
indicate important things about the financial position. 

Issues to consider: 

Are the movements in the two types of reserves (usable and unusable) separately 
identifiable?  

Do the notes (or narrative statement) adequately explain the major movements?  

Are the purposes of the material earmarked reserves consistent with the authority’s 
objectives and the authority’s decisions? 

 

 

  

Page 43



7 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 

The CIES shows income and expenditure incurred in the year. In some Authorities the lines 

on the CIES will differ from those on the council’s budget, as the latter are based on the 
Council’s internal decisions on how to organise itself to deliver services. However, for both 
Staffordshire Moorlands DC and High Peak BC we have aligned the presentation of the 
Quarterly Monitoring financial reports with the CIES.   

 As the CIES analyses income and expenditure based on services, it also does not have the 
same headings you see in commercial financial statements.  

The statement shows income received within the year from grants, taxation and investments 
and expenditure such as payments made to finance services, pay employees and interest 
payments. It also shows accrued income for something that has been used by the recipient 
but that has not yet been invoiced, and accrued expenditure, which is the value of 
something the council has received but that is not yet billed for.  

The statement shows:  

 The cost of services, which are laid out in a way to understand service specific 
income and expenditure  

 Other operating income and expenditure such as surplus or deficit from the sale of 
assets (property, plant and equipment)  

 Financing and investment income and expenditure, such as interest payable and 
receivable  

 Income from taxation such as council tax and grants 

 Other income and expenditure that do not appear elsewhere in the statement (such 
as increases in the value of land and buildings and changes in the actuarial 
assessment of pension liabilities) 

The first part of the CIES reflects the full economic cost of providing the services of the 
authority with the results summarised at the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 
line. It represents the operating costs of providing the services of the authority in the year. In 
the private sector this would be equivalent to the profit or loss of a company.  

The second part, other comprehensive income and expenditure, shows the gains or losses 
in the measurement of the assets and liabilities of the authority. These gains or losses arise 
as a result of changes in market valuations, interest rates or changes in measurement 
assumptions in relation to pensions assets and liabilities. 

Issues to consider: 

Does the CIES reflect the financial performance of your authority as you know it? 

Have there been significant changes year on year and are these clearly explained? 

The example overleaf takes the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 
2019/20 for Staffordshire Moorlands DC and separately identifies the various components of 
the statement.   

Page 44



8 
 

This example uses the CIES from 2019/20 for Stafforshire Moorlands DC and separately 
identified the component parts of the statement.  

 

  

 

 

Expenditure of 

continuing 

operations, analysed 

by “service 

segment” (that is, 

serviced descriptions 

familiar to the 

Council. These lines 

are reconciled to the 

General Fund in the 

Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis 

note. 

 

These are 

operational  costs of 

providing the 

services  of the 

authority. 

 

This is the total 

income and 

expenditure of 

the authority for 

the year, this l ine 

is also  reconciled 

to the General 

Fund in the 

Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis 

note. 

 

Page 45



9 
 

Balance Sheet  

The Balance Sheet represents the value of the council’s assets and liabilities as at 31 

March, (end of the financial year). So unlike the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement which shows what has happened through the year, the Balance Sheet is a 
snapshot in time. This is why you tend to get the most out of comparing balance sheets over 
time.  

An asset is anything the council owns or is owed, and a liability is anything a council owes. 
Assets less liabilities gives you the net assets of the council. These are balanced by 

reserves (hence, the balance sheet). In basic accounting, Assets = Liabilities + Equity. 
Companies hold equity, whilst councils hold reserves.  

There are different types of assets and liabilities: 

Non-current assets are things that the Council cannot turn into cash within a year and will 
therefore own in more than a year’s time. Non-current assets include fixed assets, which are 
physical things the council uses such as property, plant and equipment. These assets tend 
to depreciate, which means that their value reduces over time, so the cost is spread over a 
period of time and the depreciation is recorded on the balance sheet. There are also other 

types of non-current assets: investment property, accounted for at market price value, and 
heritage assets, which might not in all cases be valued if that is not possible or practicable, 

Current assets are things the Council owns that can be turned into cash within a year from 
the date on the balance sheet. They include cash, financial and investment assets that are 
held for sale within the financial year and debts owed to the council, recorded as debtors. 
 
Current liabilities are amounts the Council owes that are expected to be paid within a year. 

They include debts the council owes, recorded as creditors. These are for example trade 
creditors but also short-term borrowing and the amount of any long-term borrowing that will 
fall due within the year, as well as money owed to other government bodies or income that 
has been received in advance for services the council will provide in the future. 

Non-current liabilities are long-term obligations, such as borrowing, leases, and pension 

obligations. 

Provisions – represent the future liabilities of the Council, but there is uncertainty about how 

much the Council owes or when it will have to pay. 

The balance sheet also includes usable and unusable reserves (an explanation about 
reserves was given earlier in the section about the Movement in Reserves Statement).  
 

Issues to consider: 

Have any significant changes between years been sufficiently explained? 

Are the changes in property, plant and equipment what you would expect, based on any 
major disposals of assets and the authority’s capital programme?  

Page 46



10 
 

Are movements in investments and borrowing consistent with what you know about the 
Council’s Treasury Management strategy? 

 

This example takes the balance sheet for High Peak Borough Council for 2019/20 and 
breaks it down into its consitutent parts  

Page 47



11 
 

 

Long term assets ie those 

expected to provide  

benefits to the authority 

beyond 12 months 

 

Current assets ie those 

anticipated  to be 

consumed in 12 months – 

the normal operating 

cycle for the authority 

 

Long-term liabilities ie those 
liabilities that are anticipated to 
be settled beyond 12 months  

Reserves are an indication of 

the resources available to an 
authority to deliver services at 
the balance sheet date – 

presented as  usable (such as 
General Fund) and unusable 
(such as the Revaluation 
Reserve and the Capital 
Adjustment Account). 

Page 48



12 
 

  

Page 49



13 
 

Cash Flow Statement  

This details the changes in cash and cash equivalents (things that can be converted into 
cash quickly) during the year. It shows how the council generates and uses cash and cash 
equivalents by classifying cash flow as operating, investing and financial activities. Cash 
flows are not the same as income and expenditure, because these are recognised when 
transactions occur rather than when cash changes hands. There are some differences in the 
cash flow statement and CIES, for example:   

 Non-cash related expenses, such as depreciation, losses on investment assets and 

increases in pension liabilities 

 Non-cash related income, such as gains on investment assets 

 The difference in timing between capital grants received and them appearing in the 

CEIS 

It shows net cash flows split into three activities: operating, investing and financing. The 
amount of net cash flows from operating activities shows to what extent the operations of the 
council are funded by way of taxation and grant income, or from the recipients of services 
provided by the council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have 
been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service 
delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future 
cash flows by providers of capital (ie borrowing) to the authority. 

Issues to consider: 

Do the cash balances in the cash flow statement agree with the relevant balances in the 
balance sheet? 

Are the council’s cash balances reflected adequately in the council’s treasury 
management strategies? 

 

Example: Staffordshire Moorlands DC Cash Flow Statement 2019/20 

Page 50



14 
 

 

Other Financial Statements  

After the core financial statements, Council accounts usually present the following other 
financial statements: 

Collection Fund, a separate account that shows the transactions in respect of Council Tax 

and Non-Domestic Rates, also known as business rates, during the year. Both are collected 
by the Council, as the Billing Authority, with the majority distributed to the relevant 
Precepting Authorities (County, Fire, Police and Central Government). 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) that shows the transactions in respect of council 

housing during the year. The council is required to document housing costs and income in a 
separate account, which is ring-fenced, meaning it cannot subsidise other activities or be 
subsidised from other income. HRA shows the main elements of expenditure – maintenance, 
management and capital financing – as well as details of income from rents and other 
charges. The HRA Statement of Accounts has two parts: an Income and Expenditure 
Statement and a Movement of Housing Revenue Account. 

Draft accounts are published before they are audited and do not contain a statement from 
the auditor. However, when the Council publishes its audited accounts, this contains a 

statement from the Council’s external auditor. This will usually include a statement on 
whether they believe the Council is a going concern and they may make recommendations.  

Surplus or deficit taken from the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement 

Three groups of transactions: 

 Operating 

 Investing 

 Financing 

Cash and cash equivalents figure in the 

balance sheet 

Page 51



15 
 

  

Page 52



16 
 

Key Summary (What You Absolutely Need To Look At) 

As noted earlier, Local authority audit committee members are not expected to be financial 
experts. However, in playing a key role in ensuring accountability and value for money you 
should, as an absolute minimum, do the following: 
 

 Read the narrative report at the start of the Statement of Accounts and see if the 

conclusions you draw from that chime with your broader understanding of the 

activities of the Council and the messages that have come through regular financial 
monitoring.  

 

 Read through the Annual Governance Statement (which is published as part of the 

annual financial statements) and identify any governance issues that have been 
highlighted – do they reflect any broader concerns you may have?  

 

 Review the Council’s latest external audit letter (the opinion on the accounts that the 

external auditors present). What assurance does it give you that the Council’s 
financial affairs are well governed? 

 
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C 

Staffordshire Moorlands Statement of Accounts 
2020/21 – Chief Finance Officer Review  

 

1. Please provide the most significant reasons for the 2020/21 operating surplus 

of £8,498,026 and explain why this figure looks so high. 

 

The £8.498m surplus is identified on page 8 of the Narrative Statement. Funding 

levels received were £6.514m above expectations owing primarily to monies 

received from Government to support local authority activities during the Covid 19 

pandemic. £1.96m was received to support the District’s own Covid hit activities 

(such as Planning and Car Parking services experiencing a considerable reduction in 

income). The Authority received £4.55m of funding in respect of Business Rates 

reliefs granted to businesses in the District. This was to compensate the Authority for 

the subsequent reduced tax take. The reduction in cash collected creates a deficit on 

the Authority’s Collection Fund in 2020/21 which has to be recouped in future years, 

so this money has been set aside to cover this deficit in 2021/22. 

 

Actual spend on activities during 2020/21 was £2.210m less than anticipated. 

£1.182m relates to Government funding for businesses and individuals impacted by 

Covid restrictions that was unspent at year end. The remaining underspend of  

£1.028m relates to savings made across a number of services, the most notable of 

which was  a £0.740m windfall distribution of funds upon the dissolution of the 

Staffordshire Business Rates Pool. 

 

Further explanations for the variances contributing to the overall underspend were 

reported within the Quarter Four (Provisional Outturn) Financial Report reported to Cabinet 

on 28th July 2021.  

 

2. Please explain the movement between years on the following lines on the 
Balance Sheet (highlighted yellow):-  
 

Page 55



 
 

Short Term Investments (£2.711m) 

This change is considered to be of little significance as it represents the impact of 

operational Treasury Management (TM) cash flow requirements at and around the 

balance sheet date.   

 

Short-term Debtors (£7.431m) 

The increase here is due to the Covid 19 impact on the Collection Fund and is 

reflected in the large increase in Central Government and County shares of the in-

year deficit. 

 

Cash & Cash Equivalents (£4.788m) 

This reflects the influx of cash received from Central Government to support the local 

authority, businesses and individuals, but not as yet applied at 31st March 

 

Short-term Borrowings  (£3.046m) 

Treasury Management strategy and transaction timings has seen a shift to long term 

borrowing and away from short term borrowing.  

 

 

31st March 

2020
Balance Sheet 

31st March 

2021

Major Variances (2020/21 

compared to 2019/20)  

29,838 Property, Plant & Equipment 29,725 (113)

572 Heritage Assets 584 12

3,879 Investment Properties 3,829 (50)

109 Intangible Assets 183 74

2,359 Long-term Debtors 1,654 (705)

36,757 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 35,975 (782)

2,202 Short-term Investments 4,913 2,711

76 Inventories 78 2

15,825 Short Term Debtors 23,256 7,431

7,704 Cash & Cash Equivalents 12,492 4,788

25,807 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 40,739 14,932

Cash & Cash Equivalents (540) (540)

(10,053) Short-term Borrowings (7,007) 3,046

(6,439) Short-term Creditors (15,225) (8,786)

(1,419) Provisions (1,120) 299

(17,911) TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (23,892) (5,981)

0 Long-term Borrowing (8,051) (8,051)

(34,127) Pensions Liability (40,765) (6,638)

(25) Other Long-term Liabilities 0 25

(130) Grant Receipts in Advance - Capital (130) 0

(34,282) TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES (48,946) (14,664)

10,371 TOTAL NET ASSETS 3,876 (6,495)

9,962 Useable Reserves 18,931 8,969

409 Unusable Reserves (15,055) (15,464)

10,371 TOTAL RESERVES 3,876 (6,495)

Page 56



Short-term Creditors (£8.786m) 

The Covid 19 impact on the Collection Fund is reflected in the large increase in 

Central Government and County shares of the in-year Section 31 grants received to 

support Businesses in-year [£6m+} and unused Covid19 Business Support Grants 

where the Authority acts as Agent [£3m+].  Where a support scheme has remained 

open in the current year further disbursements have been made with any remaining 

balance to be reconciled and returned to Central Government in due course.  

 

Long-term Borrowing (£8.051m) 

As noted above, Treasury Management actions and transaction timings has seen a 

shift to long term borrowing and away from short term borrowing.   

 

Pensions Liability (£6.638m)  

The increase in the pension liability arises from the year end valuations performed 

by the Scheme Actuary, which this year have been impacted by a change in the 

discount rate that is applied to calculate the value of assets/liabilities. The Note 4f on 

page 53 identifies just how sensitive the liability figure is to actuarial assumptions 

around the discount rate. The discount rate relates to the present value of future 

payments (i.e.  pension benefits). The present value of a pension benefit is how 

much it is worth today. By their nature, estimates of future value are imprecise. The 

discount rate is used to allocate the cost of future benefits over time, to answer the 

basic question “how much should we contribute today so we hit our funding target in 

the future”. The discount rate used is important because if it is lowered, then it 

makes pensions appear to be more expensive, because you are assuming that the 

pension fund will earn less money over time, meaning more money needs to be 

contributed 

 

Useable Reserves 

The operating surplus generated in 20/21 has contributed £8.98m to useable 

reserves, though significant elements have been earmarked as committed – in 

particular, £4.55m regarding the Collection Fund deficit (which will be applied in 

2021/22) and £1.18m in respect of Discretionary Covid19 grant funding (which we 

expect to use in 2021/22).  

 

Unusable Reserves 

The decrease in unusable reserves primarily reflects a £8.67m increase in pension 

liability arising from the year end valuations performed by the Scheme Actuary. Note 

that this differs from the increase in pension liability because of the lump sum 

contribution the Council makes to reduce the deficit.  There is also a £4m change on 

the Collection Fund Adjustment account as a result of the Covid19 reliefs granted to 

Businesses in year. Movement on the Council’s Capital Adjustment Account of some 

£2m reflects the cumulative impact of revaluations and impairments on the charge 

for assets consumed in the year. 

 

Page 57



3. Can you please provide an explanation for the £0.475m reduction in income for 

Property Services (Gross income in 2019/20 was £1.040m, compared to 

£0.565m in 2020/21) 

 

This reflects the loss of Car Parking income due to Covid-19 restrictions. 

 

4. Can you please provide an explanation for the reduction in both gross 

expenditure and gross income for the Benefits service (expenditure in 2019/20 

was £12.484m compared with £11.946m in 2020/21; and income was £12.355m 

in 2019/20 compared with £11.721m in 2020/21) 

 

This reflects the continuing trend of less benefits being paid out, as entitlement is 

reduced and levels of employment increase.  As income is based on expenditure 

(that is, the majority is claimed back from Government), it too has reduced by a 

similar amount, leaving the net cost fairly consistent between the two years 

(£0.129m in 2019/20, compared with  £0.225m in 2020/21). 

 

5. Please explain the considerable differences in both gross expenditure and 

gross income for the Corporate Finance service (expenditure in 2019/20 was 

£0.350m compared with £3.318m in 2020/21; and income was £0.104m in 

2019/20 compared with £5.402m in 2020/21) 

 

The figure reflect the way that the Council has chosen to manage the majority of the 

discretionary Covid19 support grant, which it did through the Corporate Finance 

account. It is important here to distinguish between the discretionary grant scheme, 

where the Council had a degree of choice over its deployment to businesses and 

individuals, and the mandatory schemes, where the Council effectively acted as an 

agent for central Government.  Here, income received was (£4.11m) and that paid to 

businesses and individuals during the year was (£2.92m), with the expectation that 

the remainder would be paid out in 2021/22.  

 

6. Please explain the difference in both Gross Expenditure (£0.533m) and Net 

Expenditure (£0.686m), from 2020/21 compared with 2019/20, for Leisure 

services.  

 

This reflects the subsidy paid to the Leisure Centre contractor to support them during 

the pandemic (and resultant less income generated). 

 

7. Please explain the “(Surplus) or Deficit on Revaluation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment Assets” change in figures from 2019/20 (£2.337m) to (-£0.713m) 

2020/21.  
 

The note in the Statement of Accounts on the Revaluation Reserve (Note 12a) on 
page 68 provides more detail, where the effect of last year's downward revaluation of 
assets reflects the Valuer's use of the Modern Equivalent Assets methodology as 

part of the DRC (depreciated replacement cost) valuations. This particularly had an 

Page 58



impact on  Leisure Centre valuations, where the existence of alternative cheaper 
sites has been taken into account and this has now been normalised in the accounts. 

 
 

8. Can you please provide more information on the more significant ‘unused 3rd 

party funds’ (total £0.643m) as stated in Note 11 (page 66)( on Useable 

Reserves? 

 

In Summary, the balances are made up of:   

 

9. Can you explain the following major variations (highlighted in yellow) on the 
Collection Fund (pages 94 to 97)?  

 

 
 

 

Service Area

Balance as 

at 31st 

March 2021  

£000

Decription

Communities 97 Community safety, community planning initiatives

Housing 242 Homeless support grant

Regeneration /  Planning 156
Custom build grant, Neighbourhood planning, Green Belt 

enforcement

Benefits 20 Benefit Reform

Leisure / Countryside 52 Leisure and Country parks development

Other 76
EU exit preparation, Individual Electoral Registration, LA 

Mortgage Scheme

Collection Fund

Council Tax
Business 

Rates
Total

Council 

Tax

Business 

Rates
Total

Council 

Tax

Business 

Rates
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income

(20,187) Income due form Business Rates Payers (8,620) 11,567

(936) Transitional Protection Payments for Business Rates (477) 459

(58,114) Income due from Council Tax Payers (59,835) (1,721)

Hardship Fund Grant income paid to Collection Fund (517) (517)

(58,114) (21,123) (79,237) Total Income (60,352) (9,097) 0 (2,238) 12,026 79,237

Expenditure 

Preceptors

4,926         Central Government 10,271    5,345

41,236         6,699         Staffordshire County Council 43,058    1,849      1,822      4,850-      

7,166           Staffordshire Police Authority 7,479      313         -          

2,506           197            Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Authority 2,566      205          60           8              

6,660           7,881         Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. 6,880      8,216      220         335         

77,271       80,524    3,253      

Distribution of Previous Year Surplus / (Deficit)

(333) Central Government 184 517

447 (60) Staffordshire County Council 213 324 (234) 384

71 Staffordshire Police Authority 37 (34) 0

27 (7) Staffordshire Fire & Rescue Authority 13 9 (14) 16

72 (266) Staffordshire Moorlands D.C. 35 345 (37) 611

-49 1,160 1209

Charges to the Collection Fund

211 48 Write offs of Uncollectable Amounts 4 140 (207) 92

296 122 Increase/Decrease in Impairment Allowance 418 48 122 (74)

(510) Refunds charged to provision for appeals (750) (240)

(566) Increase/derease in provision for appeals 2 568

112 Cost of collection alowance 112 0

-287 -26 261

58,692 18,243 76,935 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 60,703 20,955 81,658

2019/20 2020/21 Major Variances  

Page 59



 

Income due from Council Tax Payers (variation £1.721m) 
 

This relates to the growth in the Council tax collectable between years,  reflecting 
both expansion of the taxbase plus an average 4.17% increase in the individual 
charges made (the increase is the composite of the precepting Authorities, not just 

the Staffordshire Moorlands element of the council tax bill).  
 

Hardship Fund Grant income paid to Collection Fund (£0.517m) 
 
This is new for 2020/21 and reflects direct Government compensation in respect of 

the Fund for Hardship awards in relation to Covid-19. 
 

Preceptor - Central Government (£5.345m) 
 
With the end of the Staffordshire Pooling Pilot arrangement, the Government share 

of business rates has significantly increased (previously more would have been 
retained locally under the business rates pooling scheme) .  The pilot shares were 

as follows: Central Government 25%, County Council 34%, Fire Authority 1%, 
Staffordshire Moorlands DC 40%). In 2020/21 this became Central Government 
50%, County Council 9%, Fire Authority 1%, Staffordshire Moorlands DC 40%. 

 
 

Preceptor Staffordshire County Council (Council Tax £1.822m; Business Rates -
£4.850m) 
 

The growth in the Council tax precept between years  reflects both expansion of the 
taxbase plus the increase in the individual charges levied by the County Council.  

With the end of the Staffordshire Pooling Pilot arrangement the County Council’s 
share significantly decreased (from 34% to 9%, a detailed above). 
 

 
Distribution of Previous Year Surplus / (Deficit) - Central Government (£0.517m) 

 
This reflects changed Government share following end of the Staffordshire Pooling 
arrangement. 

 
Charges to the Collection Fund (provision for appeals) (£0.568m) 

 
This is the prior year reduction in provision reflecting the withdrawal of certain 
significant appeals (eg Alton Towers). The provision is now considered to be 

adequate. 
 

10. Are there any major risks to the authority indicated in the accounts?  If so, 
how are these being dealt with?    
 

Narrative Report:  this goes into some detail about the effect of Covid 19 on the 

figures reported in the Statements as well as its potential impact on the financial 

standing of the council in the medium to long term (on pages 2 to 4). It also touches 

upon the level of funding that is now raised and retained locally as opposed to being 

provided by Central Government.  These two issues make the Council more 

Page 60



vulnerable to both national and local economic factors (but also more open to 

benefiting from above average economic growth too). 

To manage these risks, there is robust budgetary control (evidenced by the in-year 

underspend, despite considerable Covid-19 pressures) and the maintenance of 

adequate reserves - both those that are earmarked to support particular activities 

and as a contingency against unplanned changes in income and expenditure.  At 

the end of 2020/21,  the general revenue reserve stood at £4.1million, which is 

£2.6million above the minimum contingency level. 

Balance Sheet (on page 31) and Capital Notes (primarily Note 6):  these list the 

extensive assets of the Authority.  Assets such as these can become individual or 

collective liabilities if they are not adequately maintained. This risk is mitigated by 

the Council’s Asset Management Plan (AMP), which ensures that capital resources 

are focused on maintaining the structural integrity and value of property assets. The 

AMP is in the process of being refreshed, with a particular emphasis on obtaining 

up to date site assessments.  

Pension Notes (primarily Note 4):  this highlights the pension liability of £40.8m, 

valuation of which is based primarily on the value of Corporate Bonds. This risk to 

the medium / long term viability of the Authority is countered by measures adopted 

by local government pension schemes to increase contributions and reduce 

entitlements over the medium to long term. Future contribution rates (combined with 

investment strategies) are designed to ensure that the Fund is in balance over the 

longer term.  

Financial Instrument Notes (Note 13 – page 71 to 79) :  This Include a 

comprehensive analysis of the various risks around the value of all financial assets 

including cash, receivables and investments. This risk is managed through the 

Authority’s budgetary control and treasury management strategy / procedures.  

Realistic budgeting is supported by robust risk adverse borrowing and investment 

strategies. 

Contingent Liabilities (Note 14 – page 80) :  Highlights a number of areas where 
there may be a future call on the Council’s resources if certain actions or events 

materialise. These items are monitored and managed as part of the Authority’s 
financial planning process. Future budgets can, if necessary, be amended in 
response to any liability materialising.  There are operating reserves available to 

ameliorate the impact on other services in any particular year. 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D 

GLOSSARY  

Everything You Needed to Know About Local Authority Accounting Terminology, But 
Were Afraid to Ask About…. 

 

NB there is a glossary in the Statement of Accounts, but this may also help, in terms of 
overall understanding of local authority financial terminology.  

 

Accruals  

The concept that income and expenditure are recognised as they are earned or incurred and 

not as money is received or paid.  

Annual Governance Statement 

An annual report prepared, approved and published with the financial statements that 

reviews the council’s overall governance arrangements. 

Balance Sheet  

This statement is fundamental to the understanding of an authority’s financial position at the 

year end. It shows the balances and reserves at an authority’s disposal and its long-term 

indebtedness, and the fixed and net current assets employed in its operations, together with 
summarised information on the fixed assets held.  

Balances  

The capital or revenue reserves of an authority are made up of the accumulated surplus of 

income over expenditure on the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account. Revenue 

balances may be utilised to provide for unforeseen circumstances or to ensure that 

payments can be made pending the receipt of income, and may be used to reduce the 
Council Tax levy.  

Best Value  

The legal duty introduced in the Local Government Act 1999 that requires councils to make 

arrangements to continuously improve the way in which its functions are exercised and to 

have regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

Billing authority 

A local council that directly bills council tax and business rates in its local area. 

Budget  

The Council’s aims and policies set out in financial terms, against which performance is 
measured. Both capital and revenue budgets are prepared.  

Budget gap 

Where the estimated expenditure is higher than the estimated income in a budget or other 
financial plan, there is said to be a ‘budget gap’. 

 

Page 63



1 
 

 

Budget outturn  

The actual income or expenditure compared to the budgeted sum at the end of the financial 

year. This is usually reported to councillors soon after the close of the financial year in the 
‘outturn report’. 

Business rate multiplier  

The annual amount established by central government used in the calculation of the 

business rates bill. This amount is multiplied by the businesses rateable value to derive the 
size of the business rates bill for the year. 

Business rates pools 

An agreement between neighbouring councils to combine their business rates activities in a 
pool. This is designed to maximise the ability for councils to retain business rates locally. 

Capital Expenditure  

Expenditure either on the acquisition of a fixed asset, or expenditure on an existing fixed 
asset which adds to, rather than merely maintaining its value.  

Capital Receipts  

The proceeds of sale from the disposal of assets such as land and buildings. 

CIPFA  

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy is the accountancy body which 

represents at national level the interests of local government and public service finance. The 

Institute produces advice, codes of practice, guidance to local authorities on best practice, 
etc. 

Code of Practice  

This specifies the principles and practices of accounting required to prepare a Statement of 
Accounts which “present fairly” the financial position and transactions of an authority.  

Collection Fund  

A statement that shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to non-domestic 

rates and the Council Tax, and illustrates the way in which these have been distributed to 
preceptors and the General Fund.  

Consistency  

The concept that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting period, and 
from one period to the next, is the same.  

Contingency  

A condition which exists at the balance sheet date, the outcome of which depends on one or 
more uncertain future events.  

Council Tax Bands 

The amount of council tax paid on a property depends upon into which of eight valuation 

bands it falls. Each home has been placed in one of these bands, according to its value on 

Page 64



2 
 

the open market, on 1 April 1991. The relative council tax charge to each band is based on a 

sliding scale where band D is set as the norm;  A(6/9)  B(7/9) C(8/9) D(9/9) E(11/9) F(13/9) 
G(15/9) H(18/9).] 

Council tax base 

This is a calculation that sums the number of dwellings in the authority, expressed as a Band 

D equivalent, applies any discounts, exemptions or premiums that have been allowed to give 

the amount the Billing Authority would raise from each £1 of Council Tax. The tax base can 
increase by building new homes as well as by increasing the council tax demand itself. 

Creditors  

Occur where the Council owes money at the year end to persons for goods and services 

supplied in year. 

Current Liabilities  

Those amounts which will become payable or could be called upon within the next 

accounting period e.g. creditors and cash overdrawn.  

Debtors  

Occur where money is due at the year end from persons for goods and services supplied to 

them by the Council.  

Deferred Charges  

Expenditure which may properly be deferred but which does not result in, or remain matched 

with, tangible assets. Examples of deferred charges are expenditure on items such as 

improvement grants, where the asset that is “improved” does not belong to the Council. 

Depreciation  

The measure of the wearing out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful economic life 

of a fixed asset, usually arising from use, time passing or obsolescence through 
technological or other changes. 

De-minimis  

Literally means ‘too small’. Councils will usually set a de-minimis level where small value 

assets (usually equipment) are treated as revenue expenditure rather than capital 
expenditure. 

Discretionary services 

A range of services that councils provide which they are not required to provide by law. 

Earmarked reserves 

An amount of money that has been set aside to be spent on a defined activity or manner at 

some point in the future. Also known as specific reserves. 

Employee Costs  

Pay and associated costs such as National Insurance and pension contributions.  

Estimates  

Same as budget.  

Page 65



3 
 

Exceptional Items  

Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities 

of the authority and which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence 
to give fair presentation of the accounts.  

 

Extraordinary Items  

Material items, possessing a high degree of abnormality, which derive from events or 

transactions that fall outside the ordinary activities of the authority and which are therefore 
expected not to recur frequently or regularly.  

Fair Value  

The fair value of a fixed asset is the price at which an asset could be exchanged in an arm’s 

length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the purchase or use 
of the asset.  

Fixed Assets  

These are Non-Current Assets that yield benefits to the Authority and the services it provides 

for a period of more than one year. These can be either tangible or intangible (see definition 

of intangible assets below: 

Tangible Fixed Assets  

• Operational Assets - Tangible assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the 
services it provides for a period of more than one year.  

• Community Assets - Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have 

no determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal. Examples of 
community assets are parks and historic buildings.  

• Infrastructure Assets - Fixed assets that are inalienable, expenditure on which is 

recoverable only by continued use of the asset created. Examples of infrastructure assets 
are highways and footpaths.  

• Non-operational Assets - Fixed assets held by a local authority but not directly occupied, 

used or consumed in the delivery of services. Examples of non-operational assets are 

investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirement, pending sale or 
redevelopment.  

Intangible Fixed Assets  

The definition of intangible fixed assets is ‘non-financial fixed assets that do not have a 

physical substance but are identifiable and are controlled by the Council through custody or 

legal rights’. Assets falling under this definition could include the Council’s Accounts are IT 
systems and software licences  

FRS  

Financial Reporting Standards as required within the SORP.  

Fund  

A major division of the Council’s accounts.  

Page 66



4 
 

General Fund  

This is the main revenue account detailing the Council’s expenditure and income on 

services, except those arising from the provision of housing accommodation directly by the 
Council. 

Going Concern  

The concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the foreseeable future, 

in particular that the revenue accounts and balance sheet assume no intention to curtail 
significantly the scale of operations.  

Government Grants  

Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies, whether local, 

national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets to an authority in return for 

past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities of the authority. 

Gross Expenditure  

The total cost of providing services before deducting any income.  

Housing Revenue Account  

Reflects a statutory obligation to account separately for local authority housing provision. It 

shows the major elements of housing revenue expenditure and how this is met by rents, 
subsidy and other income.  

Income  

Monies received or due from rents, fees and charges for services, specific grants and 
investment interest.  

Income and Expenditure Account  

A statement that reports the net cost for the year of all the functions for which the authority is 

responsible, and demonstrates how that cost has been financed from general government 
grants and income from taxpayers. 

Internal borrowing 

Where a council decides to use its reserves to finance expenditure rather than borrow 
externally. 

Internal control  

A system of rules, systems and procedures intended to make sure that the council’s financial 
activities are well managed. 

Investments  

These are only long-term investments which are intended to be held for use on a continuing 

basis in the activities of the authority. Where investments do not meet this criterion they have 
been classified as current assets.  

Lease  

These can be either:  

Page 67



5 
 

• Finance lease - A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee.  

• Operating lease - A lease other than a finance lease.  

Liabilities  

Those amounts which will become payable by the Council in the short or long term.  

Local government settlement  

The annual announcement by Government of the amount of grant funding to be provided for 

the forthcoming year. The provisional settlement is usually announced in mid-December, 
with a final settlement confirmed in mid to late January. 

Long-Term Contracts  

A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial 

asset or the provision of a service, where the time taken substantially to complete the 
contract is such that the contract falls into different accounting periods.  

Matching  

The concept that expenditure and income transactions, including accruals, are matched with 

one another so far as their relationship can be established, or justifiably assumed, and dealt 
with in the period to which they relate. 

Materiality  

The concept of materiality derives from the premise that financial statements often cannot be 

precisely accurate but this need not detract from their ability to be fairly stated. Within certain 

limits a tolerance is permitted in measurement and disclosure of financial statement items 

and the concept of materiality determines the acceptability of the degree of this tolerance.  

Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 

A budget estimating income and expenditure at a high level over at least three forward 
financial years. 

Minimum Revenue Provision  

The minimum revenue provision (MRP) is the minimum amount that must be charged to an 

authority’s revenue account each year and set aside as a provision for debt repayment or 

other credit liabilities.  

Narrative report  

An element of the council’s annual financial statements providing an overview of the 

council’s finances and financial provision in an accessible format. 

National Non-Domestic Rates  

A national rate levied on businesses by the Government, collected by local authorities on the 

Government’s behalf. From 1st April 2013 Central Government introduced the Business 

Rates Retention Scheme where a proportion of Business Rates would be retained locally 
rather than all being paid into a National Pool, as under the previous system. 

 

Page 68



6 
 

Net Book Value  

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost 
or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for depreciation.  

Net Expenditure  

Gross expenditure for a service, less directly related income.  

Net Realisable Value  

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of 
non-operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the asset.  

Post Balance Sheet Event  

The occurrence of a material event between the balance sheet date and the date the 

accounts are authorised for issue, which might have a bearing on the financial results of the 

organisation. In such cases the event should be reflected in the Statement of Accounts as a 
note or amendment.  

Precept  

The amount of income collected in the Collection Fund on behalf of other public bodies who 

cannot bill council tax directly (such as the County Council).  The council tax is collected on 

behalf of the precepting authority by the relevant billing authority (usually the district or 
borough council). 

Prior Year Adjustments  

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting 

policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. They do not include normal recurring 

corrections or adjustments of accounting estimates made in prior years.  

Provisions  

Provisions are required for any liabilities or losses which are certain or likely to be incurred, 
but where there is uncertainty as to the amounts or the dates on which they will arise.  

Prudence  

The concept that revenue is not anticipated but is recognised only when realised in the form 

either of cash or of other assets, the ultimate cash realisation of which can be assessed with 

reasonable certainty.  

Prudential borrowing/The Prudential Code 

The CIPFA Code of Practice that regulates local council capital spending and financing. 

Requires all borrowing to be both affordable and prudent. 

PWLB  

Public Works Loans Board - a statutory body operating within the United Kingdom Debt 

Management Office, which is an Executive Agency of HM Treasury. Its function is to lend 

money from the National Loans Fund to local authorities and other prescribed bodies, and to 
collect the repayments.  

Rateable Value (RV)  

Page 69



7 
 

The value, assessed by the Valuation Office Agency, on which business rates are payable.  

Recharges  

The transfer of costs from one account to another.  

Related Party Transactions  

The transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for a related party 

irrespective of whether a charge is made.  

Responsible financial officer  

The proper name for the ‘Section 151 officer’. Every council, by law will designate an 

individual officer as having legal responsibility over providing effective financial management 

and advice across the council. The post holder must be a qualified member of one of the 
main accountancy bodies in the UK. 

Reserves  

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of provisions made above are 
considered as reserves. 

Revenue Expenditure  

The cost related to the day-to-day running of services.  

Revenue Income  

The income related to the day-to-day running of services. 

Revenue Support Grant  

A general grant paid by Central Government to local authorities to help them finance the cost 

of their services, distributed on the basis of government relative needs formulas. The amount 

of this grant has been severely reduced (and in many cases set to zero) since 2010. 

Ring-fenced funding, budgets etc income and expenditure budgeted and spent on certain 

defined activities and cannot be used elsewhere. 

Running Expenses  

Regular revenue expenses other than employee costs. 

Section 151 officer 

Another name for the responsible financial officer. Derived from the fact that section 151 of 
the Local Government Act 1972 requires there to be such an officer at every council. 

Self-insurance  

The process used by many councils to use a specific reserve to set aside money to repair or 

replace any damage that occurs where there is no external insurance policy to cover the 
loss. 

Specific Government Grant  

Money provided by central government to local government where there are specific 
requirements for councils to spend the money on certain defined activities. 

Statutory services 

Page 70



8 
 

Services which councils must provide by law. 

SSAPs  

Statements of Standard Accounting Practice as recommended to local authorities. 

SORP  

The Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) sets out the application of Statements of 

Standard Accounting Practice (SSAP’s) and Financial Reporting Standards (FRS’s) to local 
authorities in the United Kingdom. 

Substance over Form  

The concept of substance over form requires that transactions and other events are 

accounted for and represented in financial statements with regard to their economic 
substance and financial reality rather than just their legal form. 

Useful Life  

The period over which the local authority expects to derive benefits from the use of a fixed 
asset.  

Work in Progress  

The cost of work completed on an unfinished project at the year end. 

 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

30 September 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Redmond Review Update 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC  

 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

John Betts - Interim Executive Director Finance 

and Revenues & Benefits 
 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance 

 

Non Specific  

 
 

Appendices Attached – Table of Redmond review recommendations and 
MHCLG response / progress 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 Concern has been growing within local government (and elsewhere) regarding 
the effective provision of external audit services. This report updates the 

committee on various national reviews affecting local public audit and their 
implications for the Local Authority as well as updates on options and the 
timetable for appointing future external auditors set by the Public Sector Audit 

Authority (PSAA).     
 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee:  
 

 Notes the progress that the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government (MHCLG) has made in responding to Sir Tony Redmond's 
review into the effectiveness of external audit and transparency of financial 

reporting in local authorities 

 Approves the proposal for further reports to this committee recommending 

any changes locally to current audit and governance processes, once 
MHCLG has finalised its proposed actions nationally 

 Notes the need for a recommendation by this committee to Council by Friday 

11th March 2022 to formally respond and accept (or decline) the opt-in 

invitation from Public Sector Audit Authority (PSAA) to join the procurement of 

bulk external audit services (this will be the subject of a separate report)     

 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



  

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The current local audit environment is a fragile system. The National Audit Office 

has recently concluded that the local audit system has worsened since 2019, 

with an increase in late audit opinions, concerns about audit quality and doubts 

over audit firms’ willingness to continue to audit local authorities all highlighting 

that the situation needs urgent attention. System wide changes are required. A 

number of reviews recently commissioned by central Government have 

attempted to respond to this (or have influenced thinking on proposed solutions). 

The most important of these has been Sir Tony Redmond's review into the 

effectiveness of external audit and transparency of financial reporting in local 

authorities. A summary of the Redmond review was previously reported to this 

committee in November 2020.  

3.2 Since then, the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) has responded to the review. A summary of the response and 

progress to date is given at Annex A to this report. Little has been finalised, other 

than a two year extension to the deadline for publishing audited local authority 

accounts. An additional £15 million has also been provided to help meet the 

anticipated increase in audit fee costs in 2021/22 and to support with new 

burdens relating to implementing Redmond’s recommendations. Most of the 

other recommendations are subject to further consultation with key national 

stakeholders. Further reports will be required so that this committee can respond 

appropriately to all recommendations, when MHCLG finalises its responses. 

3.3 One key decision by MHCLG was to reject Redmond’s recommendation for a 

new, independent “systems leader” body, the Office of Local Audit and 

Regulation (OLAR). Instead, the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority 

(ARGA), which is the successor regulatory authority to the Financial Reporting 

Council (FRC), will be strengthened with new powers over local government 

audit. The existing Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) will continue as the 

appointing body for local audit, in charge of procurement and contract 

management for local government auditors. It is unclear how this solution 

responds effectively to Redmond’s concerns regarding system-wide leadership, 

audit supply and market instability, and practical issues such as  accelerating 

qualification of new auditors and building attractive career paths. This is a 

concern shared by the House of Commons Public Accounts Committee (PAC).  

3.4 The Council will need to make an important decision about its external audit 

arrangements for the period commencing from the financial year 2023/24. In 

relation to appointing auditors, it can:  

 arrange its own procurement  

 make the appointment itself or in conjunction with others 

Page 74



  

 join the national collective scheme (currently administered by Public 

Sector Audit Appointments [PSAA] 

3.5 PSAA will publish a prospectus for the proposed, new national scheme in late 

September 2021 and the Local Authority will have until Friday 11th March 2022 

to formally respond and accept (or decline) the opt-in invitation to nationally 

brokered local audit contracts (as it currently does). If it is well designed and 

implemented, the national scheme should be simpler and likely to deliver lower 

fees with less administrative cost and less effort, than would be achievable 

through a local procurement. However, a more formal report will come to the 

committee in February 2022 (with a recommendation to Council in the same 

month), once the PSAA prospectus is received and analysed.         

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 An effective external audit service will help ensure the Council uses resources 
effectively and provide value for money.  

 
5.       Options and Analysis 

 

5.1 The report is primarily for information at this stage, but the options available for 
procuring external audit services are summarised in para. 3.4 above and a 

further report will recommend a way forward.    
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 

None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
No Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is required. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

There are no direct financial implications from this report, although the 
likelihood is that audit fees will increase. Nationally, the Government has 
pledged £15 million to contribute towards the additional costs associated 

with implementing Redmond’s recommendations. 
   

6.5 Legal 
Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 
requires that a decision to opt in must be made by a meeting of the 

Council. 
 

16.6 Sustainability 
None. 
 

6.7   External Consultation 

Page 75



  

  None   
 
6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

There are no immediate risks to the Council, but if nationally the new regime 
fails to provide effective system-wide leadership then there is the risk that 

audit firms will leave the market, meaning viable external audit of local 
government becomes unviable.  There are no actions that a single Local 
Authority can do to mitigate this risk; hence the need for system-wide 

leadership.  
 

 
JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
 

 
Moorlands House 

 
John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 
07581 010628 

 
 

 
  

Page 76

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


  

Update on Reviews, Progress & Impact of Proposed Changes to the Local Audit 
System  
 

7. Background  
 

7.1. From 1 April 2015, local public bodies in England have been required to appoint 

their own auditors to audit their accounts annually. This system was introduced 

by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and came into being following 

the abolition of the Audit Commission. As part of that overhaul, there was a shift 

to a position which involved private audit firms bidding for blocks of work 

(previously there had been a mix of public and private).  
 

7.2. The 2014 Act allowed the Government to nominate a body to appoint auditors to 

those local authorities which ‘opt in’ to its joint procurement arrangement. In 

2016, the Government appointed a body called Public Sector Audit 

Appointments (PSAA) to make these appointments. PSAA is a subsidiary 

company of the Local Government Association (LGA) and 98% of relevant local 

bodies opted in to the PSAA arrangements for the period from 2018 to 20231. 

This included the Alliance authorities.  
 

7.3. Local audit comprises two elements. Firstly, there is an opinion on whether the 

statutory financial accounts, produced in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting, are true and fair, in accordance with 

statutory duties. As well as the financial audit, legislation also requires a further, 

value for money opinion from public audit, which includes an assessment on 

whether the auditor is satisfied that the Authority has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. Public auditors also have additional powers and duties to make 

Public Interest Reports and Statutory Recommendations, which places an 

additional burden and cost. 
 

7.4. Concern has been growing within local government (and elsewhere) regarding 

the effective provision of external audit services. The rest of this report updates 

the committee on various national reviews affecting local public audit and their 

implications for the Local Authority as well as updates on options and the 

timetable for appointing future external auditors set by PSAA. 
 

8. Current Position 

 

8.1. The current local audit environment is a fragile system2. The National Audit 

Office has recently concluded3 that the local audit system has worsened since 

2019, with the increase in late audit opinions, concerns about audit quality and 

                                                 
1
 The House of Commons Briefing Paper 07420 (April  2021) “Local audit in England” provides a useful overview  

https://researchbriefings.fi les.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7240/CBP-7240.pdf 
2
 PSAA “Summary of the response to PSAA’s consultations on its initial thinking of proposed arrangements for the 

appointing period starting April  2023” https://www.psaa.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Summary-of-the-
response-to-PSAA-consultations-on-its-proposed-arrangements-for-the-appointing-period-starting-April-2023-
FINAL.pdf 
3
 National Audit Office “Timeliness of local auditor reporting on local government in England, 2020” (March 2021) 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/timeliness -of-local-auditor-reporting-on-local-government-in-england-2020/ 

Page 77



  

doubts over audit firms’ willingness to continue to audit local authorities all 

highlighting that the situation needs urgent attention. System wide changes are 

required. That is, more work is required nationally to design and implement a 

system for local audit which is more stable, resilient and sustainable. This is 

evidenced partly by the large proportion of local audits that are being delivered 

late. 55% of local authorities’ March 2020 accounts had not received an audit 

opinion by the revised deadline of 30 November 2020. However, it is also 

reflected in the number of reviews recently commissioned by central 

Government: 
 

 the Kingman review of audit regulation 

 the Competition and Markets Authority review of the audit market 

 the Brydon review of the quality and effectiveness of audit 

 the Redmond review of local audit and financial reporting 
 

8.2. Sir John Kingman’s review (of the Financial Reporting Council)4
 recommended 

its replacement with a new, better resourced independent regulator with 

significantly expanded powers and objectives. This  new regulator is named the 

Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA). Since then, the proposal is 

that ARGA will also have oversight of local public audit.  The Competition and 

Markets Authority (CMA)5 proposed that Audit committees should report directly 

to the ARGA throughout the audit tender process and audit engagement (it is 

not clear whether this would apply to local government) and also proposed an 

operational split of firms’ audit and non-audit functions.  Sir Donald Brydon’s 

considered how the audit process and product could be developed to better 

serve the wider public interest, but was focussed primarily on listed companies 

and credit and insurance firms (rather than public sector bodies). The largest 

impact, though, came from Sir Tony Redmond's review into the effectiveness of 

external audit and transparency of financial reporting in local authorities.  
 

9. The Redmond Review 

 

9.1. In summary, the significant findings of Redmond’s review were as follows:  
 

 There was a lack of coherence in local audit arrangements, including no 

coherence in the approach to procure audit and concerns regarding the 

effectiveness of local audit, partly linked to fee structures 

 There was a view that the costs of local audit were less than they should be 

(perhaps by up to 25%) and as a result the quality of auditors has reduced, 

because generally they don’t have the experience or knowledge of local 

authorities 

 There was an issue of whether Audit Committees understood various issues 

sufficiently to question and challenge in an effective way and there were low 

numbers of independent Audit Committee Members, with little 

                                                 
4
 Available at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial -reporting-council-review-2018 

5
 Available at: 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/5c17cf2ae5274a4664fa777b/Audit_update_paper_S.pdf  

Page 78



  

communication between the Audit Committee and Inspectors and no formal 

exchange of views and little relationship to Full Council  

 Internal Audit is not used much by External Audit as the code of practice 

does not require them to liaise with internal audit work  

 Current arrangements make it difficult for the public to properly understand 

what is important in the accounts. More can be done to improve transparency 

of what local authorities do 
 

9.2. As a result, the key recommendations coming from the report were as follows: 
 

 A new ‘Office of Local Audit Regulation’ be established and have 

responsibility for procuring, managing, overseeing and regulating local 

audits 

 Fee structure needs to be revised to reflect the true cost with local audit 

firms 

 At least 1 independent member will be required on each Audit Committee.  

 A requirement for the three statutory officers (Monitoring Officer, Section 

151 officer, Head of Paid Service) to meet External Audit annually.  

 Audit Committee members will have a requirement to be trained.  

 Audit completion will move to 30 September from 31 July.  

 An annual report to be presented to the first Council meeting after 30 

September from the External Auditor.  

 Auditors must have skills and training, but also there needs to be training in 

place for Local Authority finance staff.  

 The National Audit Office Code of Practice on Value For Money to be 

endorsed 
 

9.3. The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) initially 

published a statement in May 2021 which provided further detail on its plan to 

reshape local audit and then in July it produced its more detailed response to 

the recommendations from the Redmond Review.   
 

9.4. A large proportion of Redmond’s recommendations were accepted by MHCLG 

and the department’s response and progress to date is summarised in Annex 1 

to this report. Importantly, though, MHCLG rejected the proposal for a new, 

independent “systems leader” body, the Office of Local Audit and Regulation 

(OLAR). This body would have had responsibility for procurement, contract 

management, regulation, and oversight of local audit. MHCLG appeared 

concerned with creating a new Audit Commission type body, so they have 

announced that the Audit, Reporting and Governance Authority (ARGA), which 

is the new regulator being established to replace the Financial Reporting Council 

(FRC), will be strengthened with new powers over local government audit. The 

new regulator will contain a standalone local audit unit, bringing all regulatory 

functions into one place. ARGA will also provide annual reports on the state of 

local audit and take over responsibility for the updated Code of Local Audit 

Practice – which are the guidelines Councils are required to follow. The 

government also confirmed that Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) would 

Page 79



  

continue as the appointing body for local audit, in charge of procurement and 

contract management for local government auditors. 
 

9.5. The announcement of a systems leader for local audit was broadly welcomed 

across local government. However, it is difficult to see how MHCLG’s proposal 

to use ARGA will address ongoing concerns regarding audit supply and market 

instability.  Three firms cover over 80% of local audit and a withdrawal by one 

would create considerable instability. Any change to the local audit system will 

need to balance this, including addressing the position of the large audit firms 

and the requirement for well trained, appropriately paid external audit staff 

working on public sector audits, alongside the need for higher quality audits in 

the short and longer term. 

 

9.6. Local audit scale fees reduced by 40% between 2014/15 and 2018/19, whilst 

central government and FTSE100 fees have increased by 20%. That reduction 

in cost seems to have come at the expense of a reduction in quality and 

timeliness (accepting that Covid-19 has also had a substantial impact). Until 

recently, the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice required auditors to give a binary 

opinion on whether the proper value for money (VFM) arrangements were in 

place (or not). Now auditors are required to provide a narrative statement on the 

arrangements in place. This will increase the cost of local audit and so 

Government has provided £15m to help meet the increased cost of audit in 

2021/22. However, such work has capacity implications for audit firms, at a time 

when there are issues relating to delays in the completion of audits and, more 

broadly, the future pipeline of auditors. 

 

9.7. Irrespective of the changes to VFM arrangements, it seems inevitable that any 

new scale audit fees will need to rise from their current levels. This is where 

PSAA will need to be effective.  
 

10. Public Sector Audit Authority (PSAA) & Procuring a New Auditor 
 

10.1. PSAA’s responsibilities are to appoint auditors to opted in bodies, set scales of 

fees, and manage contracts with audit firms for delivery of external audit 

services to opted in bodies. “Opted in” here refers to the process whereby the 

Local Authority indicates its willingness to sign up to a co-ordinated procurement 

process.  PSAA recently undertook a consultation on its proposed approach to 

the next round of auditor appointments, acknowledging that procurement alone 

cannot resolve the systemic issues faced across the local public audit system. 

PSAA’s intention is to continue prioritising new longer-term contracts, which 

makes sense in terms of providing greater certainty for audit firms. It also wants 

to open up the market to more entrants, although the mechanism for doing this 

is still being debated. 
  

10.2. However, PSAA’s suggestion that some existing contracts may be extended 

received mixed responses (presumably based primarily on quality concerns from 

Local Authorities as well as audit firm concerns regarding financial 

sustainability).  PSAA also intend to evaluate tender submissions on the basis 

Page 80



  

an 80% weighting for the quality aspects and just a 20% weighting for price 

(currently the split is 50:50).  

 

10.3. Local Authorities will need to make important decisions about their external audit 

arrangements for the period commencing from the financial year 2023/24. In 

relation to appointing auditors, the Local Authority has the option to: 

 arrange its own procurement  

 make the appointment themselves or in conjunction with others 

 join the national collective scheme (currently administered by Public 

Sector Audit Appointments [PSAA]) 
 

10.4. The position is further complicated, as the Government is reviewing the public 

sector procurement regulations, following the UK’s withdrawal from the 

European Union. Generally, the national scheme (if well designed and 

implemented) should be simpler and likely to deliver lower fees with less 

administrative cost and less effort, than would be achievable through a local 

procurement. 
  

10.5. Officers will attend webinars run by PSAA in the Autumn to improve 

understanding about the preparations for the new appointing period including 

the opt-in process and auditor appointment process, as well as seeking to 

increase awareness of PSAA’s role and remit. PSAA will publish a prospectus 

for the proposed, new national scheme in late September 2021 and the Local 

Authority will have until Friday 11th March 2022 to formally respond and accept 

(or decline) the opt-in invitation. Under the Regulations this is a decision that 

needs to be taken by Full Council. A further report will be brought to the 

committee recommending a way forward. 

 

11. View of the Public Accounts Committee 
 

11.1. Despite reviewing the various changes highlighted above, a report from the 

House of Commons Public Accounts Committee (PAC) in July 2021 still casts 

doubt on the integrity of the local government audit market, the ability of the 

current system to deliver audit on time and whether the proposed new 

arrangements will deliver “leadership”.  The PAC adds that there is concern 

about the high risk of collapse for the audit market and what contingency plans 

the government may have. 
 

11.2. It also notes councils have become increasingly unattractive as clients and it 

wants government to work with the regulator and accountancy institutes to 

“accelerate” qualification of new auditors and “build attractive career paths” to 

bolster audit firms. The PAC also doubt whether the proposed oversight 

arrangements for audit will work.  They express concern that as long as 

functions remains split between the FRC or ARGA managing quality and content 

and the PSAA procuring audit appointments, there will be none of the proper 

systems leadership required (despite Redmond’s recommendations). Lastly, the 

PAC called for the audits to be recalibrated to focus on areas of “greatest risk 

Page 81



  

and concern to citizens.” PAC argue that some of the work currently undertaken 

is “disproportionate” to the risk facing councils.  

 

11.3. Certainly the experience across the Alliance is that increased challenges on 

professional valuations on balance sheet items (such as those for property, plant 

and equipment and pensions liabilities), exhorted by the FRC, has questionable 

value to the local taxpayer. They do not feed into general fund balances and add 

little credence to local understanding of the financial standing of the local 

authority, but take up a lot of time and effort. 

 

12. Summary & Conclusions 

 

12.1. It is positive that Government has recognised the systemic issues associated 

with local public audit since the dissolution of the Audit Commission. The 

Redmond review was welcomed as a response to the situation. MHCLG’s 

response to a large number of Redmond’s recommendations remain “in 

progress” or are only partly accepted, so it is difficult to predict how this 

committee will need to respond to any final proposals. A number of the 

recommendations require substantial input from other key stakeholders (for 

example, the Local Government Association, National Audit Office, Chartered 

Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy, Institute of Chartered Accountants 

England & Wales, Financial Reporting Council) and organising this will take 

time. Locally, some areas (such as training for committee members) are already 

in train. Further reports will be required so that the committee can respond 

appropriately to all final recommendations. 

 

12.2. In the short term, the committee will need to consider whether to “opt in” to 

nationally brokered local audit contracts (as it currently does). Initial analysis 

suggests that the PSAA scheme (if well designed and implemented) should be 

simpler and likely to deliver lower fees with less administrative cost and less 

effort, than would be achievable through a local procurement. For this to be 

effective it will also be important that the Alliance has the same external auditor 

for both Councils. A more formal report on the “opt in” decision will come to the 

committee in February 2022 (with a recommendation to Council in the same 

month).        

 
 

 

Page 82



 

 

Appendix  A: Table of Redmond review recommendations and MHCLG response / progress  

Action to support immediate market stability (recommendations 5, 6, 8, 10, 11) 

Recommendation December MHCLG Response Progress update 

5. All auditors engaged in local audit 
be provided with the requisite skills 
and training to audit a local authority 
irrespective of seniority. 

Accept; we will work with the ICAEW, 
CIPFA and FRC to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the ICAEW, 
CIPFA and FRC, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a 
working group to deliver this recommendation, which is currently 
considering proposals to deliver it and we will provide an update 
ahead of summer recess. 

6. The current fee structure for local 
audit be revised to ensure that 
adequate resources are deployed to 
meet the full extent of local audit 
requirements. 

Accept In progress. 
 
• We are currently consulting on proposals to make amendments to 
The Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 that will, 
subject to stakeholders’ views, provide Public Sector Audit 
Appointments Ltd (PSAA) (the bulk audit services procurement body) 
with more flexibility to agree fees that more closely match the actual 
costs of audit. 
• We are providing £15 million to principal bodies, both to help 
support affected bodies to meet the anticipated increase in audit fee 
costs in 21/22 and to support with new burdens relating to 
implementing Redmond’s recommendations. We are currently seeking 
views via public consultation on the methodology for distributing this 
funding in the fairest way and our intention is to confirm individual 
allocations as soon as possible after the consultation closes on 18 May. 

P
age 83



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG Response Progress update 

• We have reconfirmed PSAA Ltd as the appointing body ahead of the 
next procurement, and will work closely with them, as well as other 
stakeholders, to ensure alignment in objectives between the 
procurement and the wider local audit system. 

8. Statute be revised so that audit 
firms with the requisite capacity, 
skills and experience are not excluded 
from bidding for local audit work. 

Part accept; we will work with the FRC 
and ICAEW to deliver this 
recommendation, including whether 
changes to statute are required 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the ICAEW 
and FRC, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a 
working group to deliver this recommendation, which is currently 
considering proposals to deliver it and we will provide an update 
ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes reviewing guidance relating to the entry criteria for key 
audit partners (KAPs). 

10. The deadline for publishing 
audited local authority accounts be 
revisited with a view to extending it 
to 30 September from 31 July each 
year. 

Part accept; we will look to extend the 
deadline to 30 September for publishing 
audited local authority accounts for two 
years, and then review 

Delivered. 
 
• Regulations extending the audit publication deadline to 30 
September for 2 years came into force on 31 March 2021. 
• At the end of this period we will review whether there is a continued 
need to have an extended deadline. 

11. The revised deadline for 
publication of audited local authority 
accounts be considered in 
consultation with NHSE/I and DHSC, 
given that audit firms use the same 
auditors on both Local Government 
and Health final accounts work. 

Accept Delivered. 
 
• Regulations extending the audit publication deadline to 30 
September for 2 years came into force on 31 March 2021. 
• At the end of this period we will review whether there is a continued 
need to have an extended deadline. 

P
age 84



 

 

Consideration of system leadership options (recommendations 1, 2, 3, 7, 13, 17) 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

1. A new body, the Office of Local Audit and 
Regulation (OLAR), be created to manage, 
oversee and regulate local audit with the 
following key responsibilities: 
 
• procurement of local audit contracts; 
• producing annual reports summarising the 
state of local audit; 
• management of local audit contracts; 
• monitoring and review of local audit 
performance; 
• determining the code of local audit practice; 
and 
• regulating the local audit sector. 
 
2. The current roles and responsibilities relating 
to local audit discharged by the: 
 
• Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA); 
• Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales (ICAEW); 
• FRC/ARGA; and 
• The Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) 
to be transferred to the OLAR. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Part accept; 
 
• We accept the need for a single organisation to have responsibility for 
leadership of the local audit system, including oversight of the quality 
framework and encouraging competition in the local audit market. 
• We accept that this requires a single body to have responsibility for: 
 
   o Producing annual reports summarising the state of local audit;  
   o Monitoring and review of local audit performance; 
   o Determining the code of local audit practice; and 
   o Regulating the local audit sector. 
 
• We do not accept that a new body needs to be created to undertake 
these functions, and think that these functions, as well as an overarching 
responsibility for system leadership and encouraging competition in the 
local audit market, should be undertaken by the Audit, Reporting and 
Governance Authority (ARGA), set to be established to replace the 
Financial Reporting Council. 
• We do not accept that this body should also have responsibility for 
procurement and management of local audit contracts, and think that 
these functions should continue to be undertaken by PSAA. 
• We will work with stakeholders to refine these proposals ahead of a 
public consultation before summer recess. 

3. A Liaison Committee be established 
comprising key stakeholders and chaired by 
MHCLG, to receive reports from the new 
regulator on the development of local audit. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Part accept; we will establish this new Liaison Committee, but think that 
this should be chaired by ARGA as the ‘system leader’ once the new 
arrangements our established. MHCLG will chair this in the intervening 
period. 

P
age 85



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

7. That quality be consistent with the highest 
standards of audit within the revised fee 
structure. In cases where there are serious or 
persistent breaches of expected quality 
standards, OLAR has the scope to apply 
proportionate sanctions. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Part accept; we will work with stakeholders to consider whether 
additional sanction powers beyond the audit enforcement procedures 
that ARGA will already have are necessary. 

13. The changes implemented in the 2020 Audit 
Code of Practice are endorsed; OLAR to 
undertake a post implementation review to 
assess whether these changes have led to more 
effective external audit consideration of financial 
resilience and value for money matters. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Accept; we have endorsed the changes to the 2020 Audit Code of Practice, 
and will look to ARGA to undertake a post implementation review to 
assess whether these changes have led to more effective external audit 
consideration of financial resilience and value for money matters in due 
course. 

17. MHCLG reviews its current framework for 
seeking assurance that financial sustainability in 
each local authority in England is maintained. 

We are considering 
these 
recommendations 
further and will make a 
full response by spring 
2021 

Accept; MHCLG carries out a range of assurance activity, drawing on local 
authority data and financial metrics and soft intelligence from 
engagement with the sector. The Department has undertaken additional 
data collection in 2020-21 to provide government with robust data on 
local financial pressures in the context of the Covid-19 pandemic, and has 
also implemented a consistent process to engage with local authorities 
facing financial challenges and, where appropriate, provide exceptional 
financial support. 

Enhancing the functioning of local audit, and the governance for responding to its findings 
(recommendations 4, 9, 12, 18) 

Recommendation December MHCLG 

Response 

Progress update 

P
age 86



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

4. The governance arrangements within 
local authorities be reviewed by local 
councils with the purpose of: 
 
• an annual report being submitted to 
Full Council by the external auditor; 
• consideration being given to the 
appointment of at least one independent 
member, suitably qualified, to the Audit 
Committee; and 
• formalising the facility for the CEO, 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) to meet with the Key Audit 
Partner at least annually. 

Accept; we will work with 
the LGA, NAO and CIPFA to 
deliver this recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 
and audit firms. 

9. External Audit recognises that 
Internal Audit work can be a key 
support in appropriate circumstances 
where consistent with the Code of Audit 
Practice. 

Accept; we will work with 
the NAO and CIPFA to 
deliver this recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 
and audit firms. 

12. The external auditor be required to 
present an Annual Audit Report to the 
first Full Council meeting after 30 
September each year, irrespective of 
whether the accounts have been 
certified; OLAR to decide the framework 
for this report. 

Accept; we will work with 
the LGA, NAO and CIPFA to 
deliver this 
recommendation, including 
whether changes to statute 
are required 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 

P
age 87



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

and audit firms. 

18. Key concerns relating to service and 
financial viability be shared between 
Local Auditors and Inspectorates 
including Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission and HMICFRS prior to 
completion of the external auditor’s 
Annual Report. 

Accept; we will work with 
other departments and the 
NAO to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We committed to working with stakeholders, including the LGA, NAO and 
CIPFA, to deliver this recommendation. We have established a working group 
to deliver this recommendation, which is currently considering proposals to 
deliver it and we will provide an update ahead of summer recess. 
• This includes consideration of new guidance developed with the 
stakeholders listed above, as well as the ICAEW and PSAA Ltd, and local bodies 
and audit firms. 

Improving transparency of local authorities’ accounts to the public (recommendations 19, 20, 21, 22) 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

19. A standardised statement of service information 
and costs be prepared by each authority and be 
compared with the budget agreed to support the 
council tax/precept/levy and presented alongside the 
statutory accounts. 

Accept; we will work 
with CIPFA to deliver 
this recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We are currently working with CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation. We are taking time to consider how it should 
work, as it is important that it is of value for taxpayers. 

20. The standardised statement should be subject to 
external audit. 

Accept; we will work 
with CIPFA and the NAO 
to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We are currently working with CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation. We are taking time to consider how it should 
work, as it is important that it is of value for taxpayers. 

P
age 88



 

 

Recommendation December MHCLG 
Response 

Progress update 

21. The optimum means of communicating such 
information to council taxpayers/service users be 
considered by each local authority to ensure access 
for all sections of the communities. 

Accept; we will work 
with the LGA and CIPFA 
to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• We are currently working with CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation. We are taking time to consider how it should 
work, as it is important that it is of value for taxpayers. 

22. CIPFA/LASAAC be required to review the 
statutory accounts, in the light of the new 
requirement to prepare the standardised statement, 
to determine whether there is scope to simplify the 
presentation of local authority accounts by removing 
disclosures that may no longer be considered to be 
necessary. 

Accept; we will look to 
CIPFA to deliver this 
recommendation 

In progress. 
 
• CIPFA/LASAAC has agreed a new Strategic Implementation Plan 
that includes delivery of this recommendation. 

 P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

22nd October 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Treasury Management Update 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

Emily Bennetts - Finance Business Partner 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non-specific 

 

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix A – Treasury Management Mid-Year 
Update Report to 30th September 2021 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to allow the robust scrutiny of the Council’s 

Treasury Management performance in 2021/22 in compliance with the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management and generally accepted good practice. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That Members note the current Treasury Management position as at 30 th 
September 2021. 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management was adopted by the 
Council in February 2010. This Council fully complies with its requirements, 
one of which is to produce at least one mid-year operational report. 

3.2 This report comprises the following: 

 The latest interest rate forecast and comment on the impacts of Covid-19; 

 Investment income earned to date and projected for the year; 

 The current investment portfolio; 

 An update to the approved capital programme; and the projected borrowing 
requirements with associated borrowing costs for the year; and 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



  

 

 Compliance against prudential and treasury indicators set in the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2021/22. 

 

3.3 The main headlines are: 

 There is no expectation for any increase to the Bank of England base rate 
within the current financial year. 

 A small surplus of £4,000 is forecast against investment income interest. 

Interest on the Ascent loan and Debenture is forecast on target, but is subject 
to change pending the Ascent Delivery model review and any new loan 

arrangement. 

 The borrowing costs budget to support the existing Ascent loan balance and 

general fund borrowing requirement is forecasts a saving of £30,000, but could 
also be affected by the outcome of the same decisions on the Ascent loan. 

 The average return on investments during the period July to September was 

0.14%, this was boosted by the notice account investments, whereas instant 
access accounts earn interest at 0.01%. 

 The Council’s investment portfolio totalled £21.7million spread across seven 
separate institutions as at 30th September 2021. 

 The Council’s external debt is forecast to be £13million by the end of the year 
at an average annual borrowing rate of 0.75%. 

 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 An effective Treasury Management function is critical in safeguarding and 

effectively managing the financial resources at the Council’s disposal. 
Sufficient financial resources are required to deliver and underpin all of the 

Council’s main priorities. 
 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management position for Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Council for 2021/22 to date and the projected outturn. As such it is 
a statement of fact and there are no options. 

 
 

 
John Betts 

Interim Chief Finance Officer 

Page 92



  

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

‘Treasury Management – Governance & Scrutiny 
Arrangements’ (Audit & Accounts Committee September 
2009) 
 
‘Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021 /22’ (Audit & 
Accounts Committee February 2021) 

Keith Pointon 
Head of Finance 
Keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 
Emily Bennetts 
Finance Business Partner 

emily.bennetts@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 

 
 

Page 93

mailto:Keith.pointon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



  

Appendix A 
    
    

    
    

 

 
 

 

Treasury Management Update  
30th September 2021 

 

 
1. Introduction  
 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 
 

3. Covid-19 Impact on Treasury Management 
 

4. Investment Income 

 
5. Investment Portfolio 

 
6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 

 

7. Prudential Indicators  

Page 95



  

1. Introduction  

 
1.1. Treasury Management is defined as “The management of the Authority’s 

investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 

and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”. 
 

1.2. The Council has adopted CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice for Treasury 

Management which recommends that Members should be updated on Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year. 

 
1.3. The Audit & Accounts Committee has delegated responsibility for scrutinising 

the treasury function.  The Committee’s role includes approval of the annual 

treasury management strategy and scrutiny of operational treasury 
management reports.  Decisions taken by the Audit & Accounts Committee are 

reported to full Council. 
 

1.4. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22 was 

approved by Council on 12th February 2021. This report details treasury 
management performance up to the 30th September 2021 and projects forward 

for the remainder of the financial year. 
 

2. Economic Forecast – Interest Rates 

 
2.1. The Council’s treasury advisers, Link Asset Services (‘Link’), provide the latest 

bank rate and PWLB (Public Works Loan Board) forecast:  
 

% 
Dec-
21 

Mar-
22 

Jun-
22 

Sep-
22 

Dec-
22 

Mar-
23 

Jun-
23 

Sep-
23 

Dec-
23 

Mar-
24 

Bank Rate 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.75 

5yr PWLB 
rate 

1.40 1.40 1.50 1.50 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.70 

10r PWLB 
rate 

1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.10 2.10 

25yr PWLB 

rate 
2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 2.60 

50yr PWLB 

rate 
2.00 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40 

 
2.2. Link’s latest interest rate forecast has brought the Bank of England base rate 

increase to 0.25% further forward to the quarter ending June 2022, with rises to 
0.50% and 0.75% within the medium term. However this is unlikely to affect 

investment performance in the current year. PWLB rates are forecast to remain 
relatively constant, with a slow increase. The Council’s current year budgets 
were set anticipating this economic environment. 

 
3. Covid-19 impact on Treasury Management 

 
3.1. High volumes of income and expenditure continued to flow through the 

Council’s instant access accounts in the first half of the year while the Council 

acted as an agent of central government in the delivery of the various Business 

Page 96



  

Grant schemes. The counterparty limits in the 2021/22 Treasury Management 
Strategy Statement were set to be flexible to respond to this situation 
specifically; since the last report, the current account balance exceeded the limit 

by 4% for 2 days during August. 
 

4. Investment Income  

 
4.1. Interest earned on investment deposits up to 30th September totalled £13,460. 

The Council has budgeted to receive £20,710 in investment income in 2021/22. 
The budget was set with an expectation of very low interest rates of near zero. 

A small surplus of £4,000 is anticipated against the budget at end of the year. 
 
4.2. The average interest rate achieved on the Council’s investments is boosted by 

the better rates achieved in the Council’s notice accounts compared to the 
instant access average. 

 

Average interest rate period 
Average Rate 

Apr-Jun 
Average Rate 

Jul-Sept 

Overall 0.14% 0.14% 

Long-term fixed (>364 days)  n/a n/a 
Short-term fixed/ notice accounts (<364 days) 0.35% 0.37% 
Instant access 0.01% 0.01% 
   

   

Bank of England Base Rate 0.10% 0.10% 

 
Ascent Joint Venture 

 

4.3. The Council continues to provide two facilities to the joint venture company 
Ascent Housing LLP: the Debenture of £5million earns interest at 2%, the 

associated £100,000 income is on target against the budget; interest on the 
Loan of £14million is earned at a forecast average rate of 3.02% across the two 

£7million rolling 1 year tranches, earning an annual interest income of 
£422,880.  
 

4.4. Any changes to arrangements with Your Housing during the year (outlined in 
the Cabinet Report 18th June 2019) would impact this income. The existing 

£14million Loan is a priority debtor therefore would be repaid in full should the 
loan mature.  The £5million Debenture owed to the Council and similarly the 
£5million Debenture owed to Your Housing are of equal priority and are 

expected to be subject to an impairment. 
 
5. Investment Portfolio 

 
5.1. The Council manages its investments in-house and invests with financial 

institutions meeting the Council’s approved lending criteria.  The Council’s 
investment portfolio at 30th September totalled £21,684,000, as shown in the 

table below: 
 

Financial Institution 

Country 

of 
Domicile 

Amount 

Maximum 

recommended lending 
duration 

Interest 

rate at end 
of period 

Average 
Maturity 

NatWest Bank UK £6,784,000* BLUE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Aberdeen MMF UK £4,600,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Page 97



  

Santander UK £3,100,000 RED (6 months) 0.58% 180 day notice 

Federated MMF UK £2,300,000 WHITE (12 months) 0.01% Instant access 

Santander UK £1,400,000 RED (6 months) 0.40% 95 day notice 

Standard Chartered 
Sustainable 

UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.08% 6 months fixed 

Lloyds Bank UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.05% 95 day notice 

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £1,000,000 RED (6 months) 0.10% 65 day notice 

Barclays ‘Green’ UK £500,000 RED (6 months) 0.30% 95 day notice 

TOTAL  £21,684,000    

MMF = Money Market Fund 

* Higher balances than usual held in the current account at month end due to the timing of income direct debits 
before month end and outgoing precept payments after. 

 
5.2. The average balance of funds available for investment for the year up to 30th 

September was £19.2million. Both average balances for the year and the total 

portfolio are larger than usual due to Covid 19 grants being held whilst business 
grant schemes are administered. The net balance of funds held at the end of 

September was £2.7million. 
 
 Ethical investing 

 
5.3. The Council currently holds £2,500,000 in financial investments with 

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) links, sometimes known as 
Ethical Investing and encompassing the Climate Change agenda. These are 
included in the investment portfolio table above, but are also highlighted here: 

 

Product Amount ESG merits 

Barclays ‘Green’  
(95 day notice 
account) 

£500,000 Linked to Barclays’ Green Bond Purchasing Programme which 

covers ‘a variety of thematic projects including energy efficiency, 
renewable energy, green transport, sustainable food, agriculture 
and forestry, waste management and greenhouse gas emission 

reduction’. 
Barclays ‘Green’  

(65 day notice 
account) 

£1,000,000 

Standard Chartered 
‘Sustainable’ Deposit 
(6 month fixed term) 

£1,000,000 

Standard Chartered operate this product under their 'Green and 
Sustainable Product Framework', which includes 'No poverty; zero 
hunger; good health and well-being; quality education; gender 

equality; clean water and sanitation; affordable and clean energy; 
decent work and economic growth; industry, innovation and 
infrastructure; reduced inequalities; sustainable cities and 

communities; responsible consumption and production; climate 
action; life below water; life on land; peace, justice and strong 
institutions; partnerships for the goals'. 

TOTAL £2,500,000 11.53% of total portfolio 

 
 
 

Page 98



  

6. Capital Programme Update & Borrowing Position 
 
Capital Programme Update 

 

6.1. The table below provides current projections for capital expenditure and 
funding: 
 

 
TMSS 2021/22 

Estimate 

Current 
Estimate 

(includes 20/21 
carry forwards) 

Total Capital Expenditure £4,689,000 £4,831,000 

   
Funded by:   
    Capital Receipts £25,000 £25,000 
    External Funding £1,512,000 £1,520,000 
    Reserves £0 £88,000 
Net Financing Requirement £3,152,000 £3,198,000 

   
Capital Financing Requirement   
  Opening CFR £18,163,000 £18,083,000 

    PLUS Net Financing Requirement £3,152,000 £3,198,000 
    LESS Minimum Revenue Provision (£87,000) (£86,000) 
  Closing CFR £21,228,000 £21,195,000 

 

6.2. The Net Financing Requirement on 2021/22 forecast expenditure is now 
estimated at £3,198,000: the increase being due to the reprofiling of some 
programmes from the previous year. 

 
6.3. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is a prudential indicator set to ensure 

that the Council's capital investment plans are affordable. The CFR represents 
the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from 
either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council's 

underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure and is derived by 
aggregating specified items for the Council's balance sheet. On the basis of the 

latest forecasts, the Council's capital investment plans remain affordable. 
 

 

Borrowing Position 

 
6.4. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a statutory duty of the 

Council to determine and keep under review how much it can afford to borrow.  
Therefore, the Council establishes ‘affordable borrowing limits’ as part of the 
prudential indicators within the approved TMSS. 

 
6.5. The Council’s external borrowing at the start of the year was £15million which 

fully funded the Ascent Loan balance plus £1million of the general fund capital 
financing requirement. £7million of local authority borrowing is due to mature 
during the year, including £2million which matured in May and £1million in 

August, none of which has yet been refinanced. Refinancing and new borrowing 
will be kept under review during the year as the capital programme is carried 

out, and if any changes to the Ascent loan relationship occur, alongside views 
about cash flow and opportunities to take borrowing at cheap levels vs internal 
borrowing in the low interest income environment.  

Page 99



  

 
6.6. The average interest on borrowing is forecast at 0.75% for the year. There is a 

potential saving forecast of £30,000 against the borrowing cost budget of 

£224,580. 
 

6.7. The ‘operational boundary’ (£33,049,000) and ‘authorised limit’ (£34,549,000) 
indicators govern the maximum level of external borrowing to fund the capital 
programme, plus any short-term liquidity requirements.  They were set through 

the Treasury Management Strategy Statement to account for the general fund 
borrowing requirement; an allowance for borrowing to cover short-term liquidity; 

and funding of the loan to the Joint Venture Company, Ascent. The current level 
of borrowing is well within prudential limits. 
 

6.8. The maturity profile of the loans is considered when undertaking external 
borrowing to ensure maturity dates are evenly spread so that the Council is not 

exposed to a substantial re-financing requirement at any one time, when interest 
rates could be high. The graph below details the maturity profile of current loans. 

 

 
 
6.9. The treasury team, along with Link, monitors opportunities to reschedule debt, i.e. 

reorganise existing debt in such a way as to amend the debt repayments, reduce 
the principal sum borrowed, alter the degree of volatility of debt or vary the 
interest payable, in order to manage risk and achieve overall financial benefit to 

the Council taking account of the premium the Council would expect to pay on 
early redemption compared to the potential interest savings. No debt 
rescheduling has taken place during the year. 

 
7. Prudential Indicators 

 
7.1. The Council complies with the Council’s Treasury Management Practices and has 

operated within the treasury management and prudential indicators set in its 

Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2021/22. 

Page 100



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

22 October 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Internal Audit Periodic Report 2020/21 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

John Leak - Head of Audit 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non Specific  

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Audits Completed – 2020/21 Audit Plan 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 

auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards, the Head of Audit must report periodically to the Audit 
Committee on the internal audit activity’s performance relative to its plan. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the information contained within this report. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of the remaining audits 

undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2020/21 financial 

year. This includes the number and classification of recommendations made, 
agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
3.2 Due to the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including continued diversion of 

audit resources to support the corporate response to the administration of the 

Governments various business grants support schemes, the Audit Plan for 
2020/21 took longer than usual to complete. 

 
3.3 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 93% of 2020/21 

audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 

deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal 

Page 101

Agenda Item 9



  

Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they 
will continue to monitor such cases. It should be noted that it is the 
responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed recommendations. 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial 
and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

None John Leak 
Head of Audit 
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 
 

  

Page 102



  

6. Detail 
 
6.1 Introduction 

 
6.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the findings of the remaining audits 

undertaken by the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2020/21 financial 
year. This includes the number and classification of recommendations made, 
agreed and where applicable, implemented by management. 

 
6.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon an annual risk 

assessed audit plan, which for the financial year 2020/21 was agreed by this 
Committee at the 3rd July 2020 meeting. The Internal Audit service also carry 
out work outside of the audit plan for which a contingency is usually built in. 

This unplanned work consists mainly of internal control consultancy work and 
special investigations into suspected fraud and irregularity. 

 
6.1.3 Due to the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including continued diversion of 

audit resources to support the corporate response to the administration of the 

Governments various business grants support schemes, the Audit Plan for 
2020/21 took longer than usual to complete. 

 
 
6.2 Audit Reports Issued 

 
6.2.1 A summary of the remaining audits completed from the 2020/21 Audit Plan is 

shown in the table below. Further details of these audits outlining key issues 
and strengths and improvements are shown in Appendix 1. 

 
Service Audit Recommendations Assurance 

High  
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low  
Risk 

Legal & Election 
Services 

Elections 0 1 7 Satisfactory 

Finance Payroll 0 1 5 Satisfactory 

Revenues & 
Benefits 

Housing 
Benefits 

0 2 6 Satisfactory 

 
6.2.2 A further breakdown of all of the audits completed during the 2020/21 financial 

year including the current status of audit recommendations is detailed in the 

Annual Report later on this agenda.  All audit recommendations have been 
agreed, and to date 93% of 2020/21 audit recommendations that are due have 

been implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified 
and not corrected, Internal Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an 
appropriate manner and they will continue to monitor such cases.  It should be 

noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement agreed 
recommendations. 

 
 
 

Page 103



  

6.2.3 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation 
being allocated a risk, every audit completed has been given an ‘assurance 
opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control 

environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit opinion on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control 

environment. The control levels are defined as follows: 
 

Control 
Level 

Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve the 
objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most part, 
are consistently applied.  However, weakness in the design or 
inconsistent application of controls within a few areas put 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance with 
controls in a number of areas are such to put the system objectives 
at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of controls, 
which leaves the system open to significant abuse or error. 

 
  
 

 

Page 104



AUDITS COMPLETED - 2020/21 AUDIT PLAN 
 

 
Elections 
 
Assurance Level 

 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 
It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 

that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives  outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 
 

 
Key Findings 
 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 The recruitment of all temporary 
employees required for the completion of 
clerical/administrative tasks during 

election periods should be undertaken in 
accordance with procedures agreed with 
Human Resources. 

 

 Improved arrangements for the storage of 
sensitive election documentation. 

 Revised contractual arrangements are 

now in place in relation to the printing of 
election packs/stationery. 

 A review of Polling Districts/Polling  Places 

has recently been undertaken and 
reported to Committee. 

 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Planning and Review     2  

Risk Registers     1  

Accounts     2  

Security     1  

Recruitment   1    

Payment of Staff     1  

Total   1  7  

 

Page 105



Payroll 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 The retrospective authorisation procedure 

for the monthly Payroll BACS and vendor 
payments should be reviewed to ensure 
that appropriate authorisation, in 

accordance with the authorised signatory 
listing, is sought for all relevant payments 
in a timely manner.  All forms awaiting 

approval should be authorised as soon as 
possible. 

 Payment of staff has been unaffected by 

key staff remote working during the 
pandemic. 

 Payroll data is reconciled monthly by a 

member of Finance staff, independent of 
the Payroll Section.  Any changes to 
individual salaries from the previous month 

are reviewed as part of this process. 
 

 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Establishment     1  

Payroll Processing   1  3  

Honorariums     1  

Total   1  5  

 
 
 

Page 106



Housing Benefits 
 

Assurance Level 
 
Assurance: SATISFACTORY 

It is our opinion that controls currently in place within the system provide satisfactory assurance 
that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives outlined in the Scope and 
Objectives section of this report are adequately managed. 

 
 
Key Findings 

 

Key Issues Strengths and Improvements 

 Additional assurance should be sought to 

confirm the classification of transactions 
and the accuracy of performance data. 

 The reasons for accepting requests to 

backdate benefit should be adequately 
recorded including consistent application 
of ‘good cause’ and provision of 

documentary proof in support of requests 
where feasible.  

 All new benefit claims and changes of 

circumstances are now received online. 

 Increased level of checking undertaken as 
part of monthly management review. 

 

 
Summary of Recommendations 
 

An analysis of the recommendations categorised by risk and classification (regulatory or added 
value) is shown below:  
 

Description High Medium Low 

R A R A R A 

Backdated Claims   1  1  

Claims Processing     2  

Performance Monitoring   1    

System Variables       

Document Retention     1  

Recovery of Overpayments     1  

Payment on Account     1  

Total   2  6  

 
 
 

 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

22 October 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/21 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

John Leak - Head of Audit 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

Non Specific  

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 Year End Information for 2020/21 

Appendix 2 Summary of Assurance Opinions 
2020/21 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to “undertake 

an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, 
control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance”. In accordance with the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards, the Head of Audit must deliver an annual internal audit 
opinion and report that can be used by the organisation to inform its 

governance statement. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the Audit Service’s 2020/21 year end performance 

information contained within this report. 
 

2.2 That the committee note the opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment. 
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise year end performance information 
for financial year 2020/21. This includes a breakdown of audits undertaken 

and completed to date, the number and classification of recommendations 
made, agreed and where applicable, implemented by management, external 
review results, developments in the service and an assessment of the 

Council’s internal control environment. 

Page 109

Agenda Item 10



  

 
3.2 The strategic audit plan covered the period 1st April 2020 to 31st March 2021 

and the year end performance information referred to above is outlined in the 

detailed part of this report. Due to the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic 
including continued diversion of audit resources to support the corporate 

response to the administration of the Governments various business grants 
support schemes, the Audit Plan for 2020/21 took longer than usual to 
complete. 

 
3.3 All audit recommendations have been agreed, and to date 93% of 2020/21 

audit recommendations that are due have been implemented. Where 
deficiencies in internal control have been identified and not corrected, Internal 
Audit are satisfied that they will be resolved in an appropriate manner and they 

will continue to monitor such cases. 
 

3.4 Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance that the Council’s 
governance arrangements including risk management and systems of internal 
control were operating adequately and effectively. 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 

Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial 
and other resources to ensure value for money. 
 

 
5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 
 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 
Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

None John Leak 
Head of Audit 
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 
 

  

Page 110



  

6. Detail 
 
6.1 Introduction 

 
6.1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise year-end performance information 

for the Council’s Internal Audit service for the 2020/21 financial year. 
 

6.1.2 The work of the internal audit service is primarily based upon the annual audit 

plan, which for the financial year 2020/21 was agreed by this committee on 3rd 
July 2020. The internal audit service also carry out work outside of the audit 

plan for which a contingency is built in. This unplanned work consists mainly of 
consultancy work and special investigations into suspected fraud and 
irregularity. 

 
6.2 Progress against Audit Plan 

 
6.2.1 Internal Audit resources in the first quarter of 2020/21 were diverted to support 

the corporate response to the administration of the Governments various 

business grants support schemes and this support has been ongoing since the 
2020/21 audit plan was commenced in July 2020 due to the introduction of 

further Government grant schemes. As a result the Audit Plan for 2020/21 took 
longer than usual to complete and the percentage of the audit plan completed 
has been adversely affected. 

 
6.2.2 Key information for both 2020/21 and the previous financial year for 

comparison purposes is summarised in the following table, including 

unplanned work unless otherwise stated.: 
 

Summary Year End Information for 2020/21 2019/20 

 

Percentage of Audit Plan completed (performance 
against annual plan) 

 

86% 

 

90% 

 

Number of recommendations made 

 

 

129 

 

201 

 

Percentage of recommendations agreed with Service 
Managers 

 

100% 

 

100% 

 

Percentage of recommendations due implemented 
within agreed timescale 

 

93% 

 

66% 

 
6.2.3 In order to put this into context, completion of 86% of the audit plan represents 

four planned audits that were not completed. These audits have been included 
within the 2021/22 audit plan where appropriate. 

 
6.2.4 A further breakdown of the audits completed is detailed in Appendix 1. Should 

recommendations have not been agreed, compensating controls exist or 

Page 111



  

service managers have accepted the risk / inefficiency of the current system 
for the benefit of service delivery. However, all audit recommendations have 
been agreed. 

 
6.2.5 Councillors will note that in addition to every individual audit recommendation 

being allocated a risk and class, every audit completed has been given an 
‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal 
control environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual audit 

opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal 
control environment. The control levels are defined as follows: 

 
Control Level Definition 

Substantial There is a robust framework of controls designed to achieve the 
objectives and controls are consistently applied. 

Satisfactory There is a sufficient framework of controls which for the most 
part, are consistently applied.  However, weakness in the design 
or inconsistent application of controls within a few areas put 
achievement of particular objectives at risk.   

Limited Weaknesses in the system or the level of non compliance with 
controls in a number of areas are such to put the system 
objectives at risk. 

Unsatisfactory There is a significant breakdown in the framework of controls, 
which leaves the system open to significant abuse or error.  

 

6.2.6 To date 93% of all 2020/21 audit recommendations that are due have been 
implemented. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified and 
not corrected, the Head of Audit is satisfied that they will be resolved in an 

appropriate manner and he will continue to monitor such cases. However, it 
should be noted that it is the responsibility of relevant Managers to implement 

agreed recommendations. 

 

6.3 Effectiveness of Internal Audit 

 

6.3.1 The Internal Audit Service has a quality control system in place to ensure that 
the outputs of the work of the Service are robust, consistent, factual, accurate, 
complete and well referenced and presented. This system consists of peer 

review and management review of all audit working papers and reports before 
audit reports are released in draft form, discussed with management and 

agreed final versions formally issued. 

 
6.3.2 In accordance with the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015, which required the 

Council to, each financial year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control, and that the findings of this review must be 

considered by a committee or by members of the authority meeting as a 
whole, a self-assessment to determine compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) has been undertaken as part of the Quality 

Assurance and Improvement Programme. 

6.3.3 The most recent independent external quality review undertaken in 2016/17 
concluded that the internal audit provision within the Council complies with the 

expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Internal Audit is 

Page 112



  

therefore effective and conforms sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / 
LGAN to ensure that the opinion given in this Annual Report can be relied 
upon for assurance purposes. 

6.4 External Review 

 
6.4.1 In addition to the requirements of the Section 151 Officer, the Internal Audit 

Service has a duty to satisfy the requirements of the Council’s external auditor.  
 

6.4.2 External Audit have used our audit reports to help them inform their risk 

assessment of the financial statement audit. 

 

6.5 Developments During 2020/21 

 

6.5.1 During 2020/21, the Audit Service has carried out the following: 
 

 Implemented the annual risk based audit plan in accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards ; 

 Carried out and issued agreed audit reports for 23 Service areas; 

 Stated an ‘assurance opinion’ for each audit completed, based upon 
Internal Audit’s assessment of the internal control environment; 

 Contributed to the development of the Audit and Accounts Committee 
through regular reports; 

 Delivered an annual internal audit opinion for 2019/20 in accordance with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards providing reasonable assurance 
that the systems of internal control were operating adequately and 

effectively; 

 Endorsed a satisfactory Annual Governance Statement with the Council’s 

2019/20 Statement of Accounts; 

 Reported on a review of the Council’s corporate governance 

arrangements; 

 Approval of updated Alliancewide Policy and Procedures governing the use 

of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. 

 

6.6 Developments for 2021/22 

 
6.6.1 In 2021/22 the work of the service will again be driven by the regulatory 

requirements of local government finance and the corporate and operational 
risks facing the Council. The Audit Service is a joint service with High Peak BC 

as part of the strategic alliance and will continue to operate and improve joint 
working practices. The Service is committed to a culture of continuous 
improvement and will strive to continue adding value to Council services 

through regular audits and close liaison with Heads of Service, improving 
internal control systems and the efficiency, economy and effectiveness of their 

services. 
 
6.6.2 The main areas of work during 2021/22 will be: - 
 

 Agreeing working arrangements with the External Auditors and in 

accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards; 

Page 113



  

 Ensuring the Audit Service continues to operate in accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards by undertaking a gap analysis and 
preparing and implementing an action plan if appropriate; 

 Continuing to develop the joint Audit Service by reviewing and 
implementing where appropriate the recommendations of the independent 

external quality review of the service; 

 Reviewing and preparing the annual Audit Plan for 2021/22; 

 Completing the Audit Plan in accordance with locally developed 
performance indicators; 

 Planning for and complying with external audit requirements; 

 Maintaining robust procedures for monitoring and reporting the 
implementation of audit recommendations ; 

 Reviewing and if appropriate updating corporate policies ; 

 Developing and continuing close working relationships within Derbyshire 

and Staffordshire; 

 Distributing audit reports promptly; 

 Identifying value for money recommendations and agreeing action with 
clients; 

 Ensuring that all high risk audit recommendations are agreed and actioned 

immediately; 

 Maintaining and improving client satisfaction levels; 

 Reviewing counter fraud arrangements; 

 Engaging the services of an ICT audit specialist where required; 

 Undertaking a knowledge and skills framework assessment to identify and 
evaluate the overall knowledge and skills of the Audit & Accounts 

Committee in order to identify training needs and to enable the committee 
to perform effectively. 

 
6.7 Assessment of the Council’s Internal Control Environment 

 

6.7.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of 
Audit must deliver an annual internal audit opinion which must conclude on the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, 

risk management and control. The system of internal control is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to 

achieve policies, aims and objectives. Internal Audit can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of adequacy and effectiveness. 

 

6.7.2 As previously detailed in paragraph 6.2.5 above, every audit completed has 
been given an ‘assurance opinion’ based upon Internal Audit’s assessment of 

the internal control environment. These assurance opinions inform the annual 
audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
internal control environment. During the financial year 2020/21 the following 
opinions were given by Internal Audit (see Appendix 2 for breakdown):  

 

 4 service areas had controls within the system to provide substantial 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 

are adequately managed; 

Page 114



  

 18 service areas had controls within the system to provide satisfactory 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 

are adequately managed; 

 1 service areas had controls within the system to provide limited 
assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 

are adequately managed; 
 0 service areas had controls within the system to provide unsatisfactory 

assurance that risks material to the achievement of the systems objectives 

are adequately managed. 
 

6.7.3 Based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year and the 
resultant assurance opinions outlined above, and the implementation by 

management of the recommendations agreed, and also comments made by 
our external auditors, Internal Audit can provide reasonable assurance 
that the Council’s governance arrangements including risk management 

and systems of internal control were operating adequately and 
effectively. Where deficiencies in internal control have been identified, we 

have been assured that these have been or will be resolved in an appropriate 
manner and we will continue to monitor such cases. 

 

 
 

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT – YEAR END INFORMATION FOR 2020/21 

AUDIT TOTAL 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

HIGH RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

MEDIUM RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

LOW RISK 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

ASSURANCE OPINION / 

COMMENTS 

 Regulatory Added 

value 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 

Agreed / (Not 

Agreed) 

Due to 

date 

Actioned 

to date 
 

Corporate Governance 12 4 0  0 0 4  4 4 12  10 10 Satisfactory 

Capital Accounting 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 
Elections 8 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 7  3 3 Satisfactory 

Leisure Sports Development 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  3 3 Satisfactory 

Housing Advice 7 2 0  0 0 1  1 1 8  7 7 Satisfactory 

Equalities & Diversity 12 2 0  0 0 4  2 2 10  4 4 Limited 

Corporate Project Management 7 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 5  5 5 Satisfactory 

Performance Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

Regeneration 5 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  1 1 Satisfactory 

Emergency Planning&Business Cont 2 0 0  0 0 1  1 1 1  0 0 Satisfactory 

Risk Management 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Substantial 

CCTV 7 0 0  0 0 3  0 0 4  0 0 Satisfactory 

Climate Change 7 0 0  0 0 3  1 1 4  4 3 Satisfactory 

Council Tax 8 0 0  0 0 2  1 1 6  0 0 Satisfactory 

NNDR 6 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

Sundry Debtors 2 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 2  2 2 Satisfactory 

Treasury Management 2 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 1  0 0 Satisfactory 
General Ledger 3 0 0  0 0 1  1 0 2  2 0 Satisfactory 

Recovery 4 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 4  1 1 Satisfactory 

Creditor Payments 5 1 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

Budgetary Control 0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 0  0 0 Substantial 

Housing Benefits 8 0 0  0 0 2  0 0 6  1 1 Satisfactory 

Payroll 6 0 0  0 0 1  0 0 5  0 0 Satisfactory 

TOTAL RECOMMENDATIONS 129 0    29    100     

ACTION TAKEN TO DATE  0 0  13 12  47 44  

Key: 
Risk   Class  
High Signif icant control w eakness / ineff iciency exists w ith a high likelihood of occurring, potentially 

causing a breach of legislation / legal requirements and/or a substantial loss or damage to Council 
assets, information and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation promptly. 

 Regulatory To ensure the integrity of internal controls and/or compliance w ith Regulations / 

Policies and Procedures.  

     
Medium Control w eakness / ineff iciency exists with a moderate likelihood of occurring, potentially causing a 

breach of organisational policies and procedures, loss or damage to Council assets, information 
and reputation.  Considered essential to implement recommendation to ensure adequate system 
controls / necessary improvement in service provision. 

 Added 

Value 

Intended as an enhancement to the existing system w hich may provide a benefit 

to either the user or the customer. 

     
Low  Minor control w eakness / ineff iciency exists w ith a minimal impact on the Council assets, 

information and reputation.  Considered necessary to implement recommendation to provide 
management w ith additional assurance regarding the adequacy of system controls / improvement 

in service provision. 

   

 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS D.C. INTERNAL AUDIT 
 

SUMMARY OF ASSURANCE OPINIONS 2020/21 
 

SUBSTANTIAL ASSURANCE SATISFACTORY ASSURANCE 

Budgetary Control CCTV 

Capital Accounting Climate Change 

Performance Management Corporate Governance 

Risk Management Corporate Project Management 

 Council Tax 

 Creditor Payments 

 Elections 

 Emergency Planning & Business 
Continuity 

 General Ledger 

 Housing Advice 

 Housing Benefits 

 Leisure Sports Development 

 NNDR 

 Payroll 

 Recovery 

 Regeneration 

 Sundry Debtors 

 Treasury Management 
LIMITED ASSURANCE UNSATISFACTORY ASSURANCE 

Equalities & Diversity  
 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Audit & Accounts Committee 
 

22 October 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

2020/21 Annual Review of the Effectiveness 
of Internal Audit 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Sybil Ralphs - Council Leader 
SMDC 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Leak - Head of Audit 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non Specific  

 
Appendices Attached – Appendix 1 2020/21 Annual Review of the 

Effectiveness of Internal Audit – Action Plan 

 Appendix 2 Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to, each financial 
year, conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, 

and that the findings of this review must be considered by a committee or by 
members of the authority meeting as a whole. An annual review of the 

effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance with the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note forms 
part of this review. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the committee note the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal 
Audit for 2020/21 including the Quality Assurance and Improvement 

Programme and that Internal Audit is operating effectively and can be relied 
upon when considering the Annual Governance Statement for 2020/21. 

 
 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to explain the approach taken to comply with the 

requirements of the Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 with regard to the 
annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control, in 
particular the annual review of the effectiveness of Internal Audit and to 

present the findings of this review. This requirement was introduced in 2006. 

Page 121

Agenda Item 11



  

 
3.2 An update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest PSIAS (March 

2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN) and Action Plan has 

been undertaken by the Head of Audit. A Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) has also been produced in accordance with the 

requirements of the PSIAS. 
 

3.3 In addition to the update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest 

PSIAS (March 2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN), other 
qualitative and quantitative factors have been taken into consideration when 

determining the effectiveness of Internal Audit. 
 

3.4 Overall, the review has shown that Internal Audit is effective and conforms 

sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / LGAN to ensure that the opinion 
given in the Annual Report can be relied upon for assurance purposes when 

considering the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21. 
 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The assurance provided by the work of Internal Audit informs the Annual 
Governance Statement and therefore helps to confirm effective use of financial 
and other resources to ensure value for money. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

Local Government Application Note for the United 
Kingdom PSIAS 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 

John Leak 

Head of Audit 
john.leak@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 
 

  

Page 122



  

6. Detail 
 

6.1 Paragraph 6[1] of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 state that “a 

relevant authority must, each financial year, conduct a review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control.” The Regulations go on to state 

that the findings of this review must be considered by a committee or by 
members of the authority meeting as a whole. An annual review of the 
effectiveness of Internal Audit to demonstrate conformance with the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards and Local Government Application Note forms 
part of this review. 

 
6.2 Previous reviews have consisted of a self-assessment of compliance with the 

current Internal Audit Standards, production of an action plan identifying where 

full compliance has not been achieved to ensure full compliance with the 
Standards in future and consideration of other qualitative and quantitative 

factors when determining the effectiveness of Internal Audit. The Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards are the applicable Standards for 2020/21. 
 

6.3 It is a requirement of the PSIAS that an external assessment of Internal Audit 
(EQA) be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 

assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. In accordance 
with this requirement, an EQA was completed during 2016/17 and reported to 
this committee in July 2017. 

 
6.4 Accordingly the annual review for 2020/21 consists of the following: 

 

 Update the self assessment of compliance with the latest PSIAS (March 
2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN); 

 Update the Action Plan created last year incorporating the external 
assessment of Internal Audit which highlighted areas of good practice and 
issues and recommendations to improve the service; 

 Report upon the results of any satisfaction questionnaires and feedback 
from any external regulators; 

 Report upon any other performance indicators collected in respect of 
Internal Audit; 

 

6.5 The self-assessment of compliance with the PSIAS did not identify any areas 
of significant non-conformance with the PSIAS / LGAN. For the areas of partial 

conformance the effectiveness of the service was not considered to be 
seriously affected, as a small number of areas of partial compliance with 
PSIAS / LGAN is considered to be acceptable due to local circumstances. 

 
6.6 The Action Plan created last year incorporating the external assessment of 

Internal Audit has been updated and is attached as Appendix 1. This action 

plan identifies some areas in which the service can be further improved and 
some revisions to the internal audit processes which may be beneficial in 

terms of improving efficiency and transparency. These issues will be 
considered and implemented over a period of time where this will result in 

improvements to the service. 
 

Page 123



  

6.7 As part of the requirements of PSIAS, Internal Audit are required to produce a 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP). The Councils 
Internal Audit QAIP was produced based on the Institute of Internal Auditors 

model template. This followed discussions with colleagues in other Councils 
who were adopting a similar approach. The QAIP is attached at Appendix 2 

and covers; 
 
 documented working practices; 

 quality control process; 
 performance monitoring; 

 annual review of effectiveness of Internal Audit; and 
 an action plan for improvement of the service.  

 

6.8 In addition to the update of the self assessment of compliance with the latest 
PSIAS (March 2017) and Local Government Application Note (LGAN), other 

factors are deemed to be important when trying to determine the effectiveness 
of Internal Audit. These include both qualitative and quantitative issues, such 
as: 

 
 Feedback from the External Auditors has been good. External Audit have 

used our audit reports to help them inform their risk assessment of the 
financial statement audit. 

 Customer Satisfaction Questionnaires are issued to all managers with the 

final audit report to establish the effectiveness of the audit review. Based 
on the questionnaires returned, an average score of 91% has been 
achieved, indicating that a good service has been provided. 

 During 2020/21, 86% of the Audit Plan was completed. 
 During 2020/21, 29 medium risk recommendations and 100 low risk 

recommendations were made and agreed with management for 
implementation. 

 The percentage of recommendations implemented within the timescale 

agreed with Managers was 93%. 
 

6.9 Overall, the review has shown that Internal Audit complies with the 
expectations of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Internal Audit is 
therefore effective and conforms sufficiently with the requirements of PSIAS / 

LGAN to ensure that the opinion given in the Annual Report can be relied 
upon for assurance purposes when considering the Annual Governance 

Statement 2020/21.  
 

 

 
 

Page 124



APPENDIX 1 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council & High Peak Borough Council 

 

2020/21 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit – Action Plan 

 

PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

Resources Annual Internal Audit Plans 
 
Internal audit plans were 
presented to and approved 
by Audit Committees post 1st 
April. 

 
 
It would be good practice to 
present draft plans to an 
earlier meeting so that work 
proposed for 
commencement on 1 April 
had been discussed and 
approved by the Audit 
Committee. 

 
 
Consider 

 
 
The current timetable allows 
the Audit Committee to 
discuss and approve the 
audit plan early in the 
financial year. 

 
 
N/A 

 
 
N/A 

Resources Internal Audit Customer 
Satisfaction Questionnaire 
 
The service currently issues a 
21 point questionnaire to 
customers following 
completion of each 
assignment but only achieves 
a response rate of about 
50%. 
 
Whilst the outcome of the 
questionnaire is generally 
positive it would be 
beneficial to consider 
whether the process might 
be amended to encourage 
greater interaction. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
The HoIA should consider 
simplifying the questionnaire 
to reflect five key questions 
relating to: 
- Pre-audit engagement 
- Focus on relevant risks 
- Progression of the audit 
- Relevance and timeliness 

of reporting 
- Added value experience 
 

 
 
 
Consider 

 
 
 
The current questionnaire 
that is based on CIPFA best 
practice will be reviewed to 
ensure there is a balance 
between content and 
response rate. 

 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 125



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

Competency Internal Audit Planning 
 
Whilst internal audit 
planning is being increasingly 
based upon a risk model as 
required by the PSIAS, the 
process largely depends at 
present on an assessment 
devised by internal audit; 
rather than reflecting wider 
risk issues identified by each 
Council. 
 
The analysis uses different 
definitions of risk impact to 
those approved within each 
Council’s risk management 
strategy. This is heavily 
focused on financial aspects 
which has a tendency to 
focus on assignments related 
to established systems rather 
than other aspects of the 
assurance framework that 
may be more appropriate in 
terms of independent 
review. 
 
There should be a direct and 
identified link between the 
internal audit plan content 
discussed with senior 
management and the Audit 
Committees and the risk 
based reasoning for inclusion 
of the assignment in the 

 
 
a. Audit Plans should be 

constructed through using 
an audit needs 
assessment process which 
achieves the objectives of  
the service as set out in 
the Internal Audit Charter. 
The audit planning 
process should be 
designed to reflect the 
assurance needs of each 
Council through 
transparent alignment 
with the Council wide 
approach to risk 
management. 

 
b. The internal audit 

planning process should 
further identify and 
document other sources 
of assurance that are 
available and upon which 
Councils can place 
reliance. 

 
c. The starting point for the 

development of the 
Controls Evaluation 
Summary is a preliminary 
discussion with 
management regarding 
the inherent and residual 
risks relevant to the audit 

 
 
Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Review 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Review 

 
 
The current audit needs 
assessment incorporates 
strategic risk register 
mapping. Consideration will 
be given to incrementally 
further aligning the process 
with the Councils risk 
management approach 
where prudent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consideration will be given 
to incorporating other 
sources of assurance into the 
audit planning process. 
 
 
 
 
 
There is a longer term aim to 
align the audit process more 
closely to risk management. 
This has to be balanced with 
other considerations such as 
local external audit 
requirements. Audit planning 
meetings already include 

 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
Head of Audit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Audit 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 126



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

audit plan as the plan finally 
approved should focus on 
the perceived needs of all 
parties for independent 
assurance regarding key 
policies, procedures, controls 
and assurances upon which 
each Council relies. 
 
In turn this should drive the 
preparation of the terms of 
reference for each 
assignment. 
 
The focus for assignments 
can therefore be shown to 
directly relate to the value of 
the ‘control risk’ and as a 
result an opinion based upon 
the robustness of the 
controls and assurances 
available to management 
and the Council. 

area under review. This 
process could be more 
robust. It may aid 
assignment planning, if 
the management 
objectives for the area 
under review were also 
identified. 

 
This should result in the 
formation of a direct link 
with the Authority’s risk 
register and the key 
mitigating controls 
highlighted, thereby 
aiding the understanding 
and ability of members of 
the Audit Committee to 
contribute to the 
assurance agenda. 
 
Evidence of the 
agreement by the HoIA 
and client to the Controls 
Evaluation Summary 
should be retained on file. 

discussion of risk registers 
and management objectives 
and these will be 
documented and agreement 
of control evaluations 
evidenced. In addition key 
mitigating controls identified 
in risk registers are tested to 
ensure their effectiveness in 
reducing inherent risk. 

Competency Internal Audit Manual 
 
The internal audit manual 
has been updated in 
February 2017 represents a 
comprehensive record of the 
practices to be followed by 
internal audit staff and 
reflects with the PSIAS. 
 

 
 
The internal audit manual 
should be updated to reflect 
greater alignment with the 
risk management policies of 
the client authorities 
particularly in relation to the 
various aspects relating to 
planning and reporting 

 
 
Review 

 
 
The internal audit manual 
will be updated to reflect any 
changes implemented as a 
result of the issues raised in 
this EQA. 

 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 127



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

The significant emphasis of 
the PSIAS reflects the use of 
a risk based approach to 
internal audit work and in 
this respect it is felt that 
greater alignment with the 
risk management policies 
and appetite of the client 
local authorities would be 
beneficial. 

(grading of 
recommendations and 
opinions) that have been 
identified within the EQA. 

Delivery Assignment Planning 
 
The service currently initiates 
each audit through 
engagement with 
management which provides 
for creation of a Controls 
Evaluation Summary; this is 
then shared with 
management as a basis for 
discussion and agreement for 
commencement of the audit. 
 
The assignment is then 
structured around a 
framework of expected 
controls and which is only 
loosely related to risks which 
have been considered with 
management. 

 
 
Internal audit working papers 
should focus on major risks 
to the Council that have been 
identified and discussed with 
the auditee; this should 
include an assessment of the 
inherent risks in each area 
(regardless of whether these 
are specifically recorded with 
the risk management 
system). 
 
The Controls Evaluation 
Summary should be 
constructed based upon the 
principal inherent risks 
identified and not expected 
controls.  This will allow the 
audit to naturally reflect 
assurance regarding the risks 
identified within the ‘Control 
Matrix’.  
 
The service should also seek 

 
 
Review 

 
 
There is a longer term aim to 
align the audit process more 
closely to risk management. 
This has to be balanced with 
other considerations such as 
local external audit 
requirements. Audit planning 
meetings already include 
discussion of risk registers 
and management objectives 
and these will be 
documented and agreement 
of control evaluations 
evidenced. In addition key 
mitigating controls identified 
in risk registers are tested to 
ensure their effectiveness in 
reducing inherent risk. 
Consideration will be given 
to incorporating other 
sources of assurance into the 
audit planning process. 

 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 128



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

to identify and record the 
other assurances available at 
an early stage in each 
assignment as this will aid 
staff when formulating an 
overall opinion. 
 
An example template is 
provided at Appendix A. 

Delivery Focus on pre-identified 
controls 
 
Assignments are currently 
undertaken by reference to 
controls; there is a tendency 
for these to reflect KLOE 
based controls or those from 
previous audit work rather 
than be generated to reflect 
the materiality of the current 
risk involved.  
 
The service has more 
recently commenced 
consideration of wider risk 
aspects relating to the area 
subject to review. 

 
 
 
The use of risk as a basis for 
the control evaluation 
summary will allow auditors 
to focus on the key controls 
and assurances which reflect 
the most material control 
risk to the area under review. 
 
The service should continue 
to develop pre-audit 
communication with 
management to focus on 
significant risk and key 
controls. 
 

 
 
 
Review 

 
 
 
There is a longer term aim to 
align the audit process more 
closely to risk management. 
This has to be balanced with 
other considerations such as 
local external audit 
requirements. Audit planning 
meetings already include 
discussion of risk registers 
and management objectives 
and these will be 
documented and agreement 
of control evaluations 
evidenced. In addition key 
mitigating controls identified 
in risk registers aretested to 
ensure their effectiveness in 
reducing inherent risk. 
Consideration will be given 
to incorporating other 
sources of assurance into the 
audit planning process. 
 
 

 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 129



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

Delivery Supervision  
 
Demonstration of effective 
supervision is necessary in 
order to both ensure the 
quality of the review and 
provide appropriate 
instruction to staff regarding 
the delivery of the internal 
audit methodology. 
 
Whilst it is recognised that 
the staff can consult each 
other regarding progress on 
work a common, formal and 
consistent process should 
exist in order to demonstrate 
supervision as each audit 
progresses. 

 
 
The service should utilise the 
existing Manager Review 
process to provide a further 
documented trail of 
supervision throughout the 
audit and cross reference to 
discussions and 
correspondence by email; in 
addition to the formal record 
that currently exists when 
approving the draft report. 
 

 
 
Review 

 
 
Where applicable audit 
working papers incorporate 
e-mail discussions and 
correspondence which are 
reviewed during the quality 
control process. 

 
 
N/A 

 
 
N/A 

Delivery Closing meetings 
 
At present no formal 
mechanism exists for the 
management of an exit 
meeting as a basis for 
discussing the outcomes of 
an audit prior to draft report 
which is used as a basis for 
an exit meeting with 
management. 
 

 
 
The HoIA should consider 
whether introducing an exit 
meeting form to be 
completed on completion of 
field work would aid 
production of the draft 
report and contribute to 
reducing the time taken to 
finalisation of a report.  

 
 
Consider 

 
 
Exit meetings prior to 
production of a draft report 
currently take place at the 
conclusion of audit fieldwork 
to ensure factual correctness 
and manager buy-in. These 
communications will be 
documented within audit 
working papers. 

 
 
N/A 

 
 
N/A 

Delivery Audit Opinions - 
Recommendations  
 
These are currently 
developed and assessed by 

 
 
 
a. Risk definitions used by 

internal audit should be 

 
 
 
Review 
 

 
 
 
The current risk definitions 
have been reviewed  to 

 
 
 
Ongoing 
 

 
 
 
Head of Audit 
 

P
age 130



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

each internal auditor, prior 
to release of the draft report 
and which include a grading 
of the recommendations 
being made.  
 
The basis for grading of 
recommendations should 
influence the overall opinion 
for each audit directly, for 
example if a risk falling into a 
definition of the highest 
impact category is identified 
(potential for death, loss 
greater than £500k) then the 
assurance level given is 
reduced. Any risk of this 
nature should automatically 
trigger a negative audit 
opinion of ‘limited 
assurance’. 
 
Aligning the grading of 
internal audit 
recommendations with the 
impact/likelihood gradings 
within each Councils risk 
management system 
provides a consistent 
understanding of the relative 
importance of findings within 
both the internal audit team 
and those being audited. 
 
At present the service adopts 
a basis which provides 

developed to reflect the 
risk appetite within each 
organisation, and the 
definitions of impact and 
likelihood used by the 
Council. Explanation of 
the use of these gradings 
should be included in all 
reports. 
 
It is recognised best 
practice to use 
terminology such as High, 
Medium and Low  or 
Fundamental, Significant 
and Merits Attention and 
perhaps support this with 
RAG rated colours linked 
to the Council’s risk 
management system. 
 
These should be used by 
each internal auditor to 
grade the 
recommendation and 
discuss the level of risk to 
which the organisation is 
exposed with each 
auditee at the exit 
meeting. 
 

b. Consideration should be 
given to removing the 
need to include ‘low’ 
rated recommendations 
in formal audit reports; 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Consider 

ensure best practice and 
consistency and are 
considered appropriate 
(CIPFA Audit Engagement 
Opinions: setting common 
definitions) Definitions will 
be reviewed periodically.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The current risk definitions 
have been reviewed  to 
ensure best practice and 
consistency and are 
considered appropriate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 131



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

flexibility for the HoIA to 
determine the grading of the 
recommendations being 
made and the overall 
opinions. This does however 
lead to inconsistencies with 
regard to grading of 
recommendations and 
overall assurance opinions 
being made. 

alternatively reflecting on 
these in discussion at the 
closure meeting and 
confirmed in a side letter 
or email to the manager. 
This would aid the profile 
of internal audit through 
concentrating on things 
that really matter in 
relation to significant risk 
as defined within risk 
management policies. 

(CIPFA Audit Engagement 
Opinions: setting common 
definitions) Definitions will 
be reviewed periodically. 

Delivery Audit Opinions - Overall 
opinions   
 
These are currently based 
upon the personal 
judgement of each auditor, 
within the definitions 
specified in the following 
table. These are subject to 
review by the HoIA prior to 
release of the draft report. 
 
Wider best practice provides 
for three levels of opinion 
being substantial, adequate 
(reasonable) or limited as 
this provides a clear 
indication to stakeholders of 
the level of assurance that 
can be gained. This opinion 
can then be aligned directly 
with the nature of the risks 
being identified and the 
grading of those 

 
 
 
The grading of reports should 
be based upon the level of 
risk exposure identified 
within the review and reflect 
the highest  ranked 
recommendation being 
reported upon.  
 
Best practice would reflect: 
- Where a fundamental risk 

(red) is identified that 
limited assurance is given. 

- Where significant risks 
(amber) are identified 
then adequate assurance 
is given, and 

- Where ‘merits attention’ 
(green) risks are identified 
these are not referred to 
in the report and 
substantial assurance is 

 
 
 
Review 

 
 
 
The current risk definitions 
and assurance levels have 
been reviewed  to ensure 
best practice and consistency 
and are considered 
appropriate (CIPFA Audit 
Engagement Opinions: 
setting common definitions) 
Definitions and assurance 
levels will be reviewed 
periodically. 

 
 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 132



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

recommendations being 
made. 

given. 
 

Delivery Annual Report 
 
The HoIA produces an 
Annual Internal Audit report 
which summarises the years 
work and includes analysis of 
performance. The opinion 
reflects a format that takes 
account of all information 
and sources of assurance 
available to the HoIA and 
therefore reflects upon the 
assurances provided in each 
audit supporting the current 
statement: 
 
“Based on the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit 
during the year and the 
resultant assurance opinions 
outlined above, and the 
implementation by 
management of the 
recommendations agreed, 
and also comments made by 
our external auditors, 
Internal Audit can provide 
reasonable assurance that 
the Council’s governance 
arrangements including risk 
management and systems of 
internal control were 
operating adequately and 
effectively. Where 

 
 
In alignment with 
recommendations made 
earlier, the internal audit 
plan should be constructed 
to provide an explicit link to 
risk and the other assurances 
available so that the HoIA is 
able to provide wider 
assurance to each Authority 
in support of the governance 
statement.  
 
Best practice is that the 
Annual Report should 
contain reference to all 
significant risks and 
therefore co-ordination with 
and an understanding of 
issues being raised by the 
range of assurance sources 
available is essential in order 
to meet this broader scope. 
 

 
 
Consider 

 
 
The annual report content 
will be reviewed in line with 
any changes to the audit 
planning and engagement 
processes (see above) and 
will be in accordance with 
best practice. 

 
 
Ongoing 

 
 
Head of Audit 

P
age 133



PSIAS 
 

Finding Recommendation Grading Management Response Target Date Responsible Officer 

deficiencies in internal 
control have been identified, 
we have been assured that 
these have been or will be 
resolved in an appropriate 
manner and we will continue 
to monitor such cases”. 
 
Whilst this reflects a position 
it could be better structured 
to meet the requirements of 
the PSIAS as it: 
 
‘must also include significant 
risk exposures and control 
issues, including fraud risks, 
governance issues, and other 
matters needed or requested 
by senior management and 
the board’. 

 

Recommendation grading Explanation 

Enhance The internal audit managed service must enhance its practice in order to demonstrate transparent alignment with the 

relevant PSIAS in order to demonstrate a contribution to the achievement of the organisations objectives in relation to risk 

management, governance and control. 

Review The Internal audit division should review its approach in this area to better reflect the application of the PSIAS.  

Consider The internal audit division should consider whether revision of its approach merits attention in order to improve the 

efficiency and effectiveness of the delivery of services 

 

P
age 134



 - 1 - 

APPENDIX 2 

Staffordshire Moorlands DC & High Peak BC 
Internal Audit Service 

Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme 
 
1 Introduction 

 Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance to the various stakeholders (the Audit Committee, Senior 
Management, the External Auditor and Operational Managers etc) that Internal Audit: 

 Conforms with the Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of Internal Auditing, Core 
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics and 
the Standards; 

 Has an adequate Internal Audit Charter, goals, objectives, polices and procedures; 

 Contributes to the organisations governance, risk management and control 
processes; 

 Has complete coverage of the audit universe; 

 Complies with applicable laws, regulations and other standards that the internal 
audit activity may be subject to; 

 Has identified the risks affecting the operation of the internal audit activity itself; 

 Has an effective continuous improvement activity in place and adopts best 
practice; and 

 Adds value to improve the organisations operations and contributes to the 
attainment of the organisations objectives. 

The Head of Audit is ultimately responsible for the QAIP, which covers all types of Internal 
Audit activities, including consultancy.  The QAIP must include both internal and external 
assessments.  Internal assessments are both ongoing and periodical and external 
assessments must be undertaken at least once every five years.   

The QAIP is reviewed on an annual basis.   

2 Internal Assessments 

 Internal Assessments are made up of both ongoing reviews and periodic reviews. 

 Ongoing reviews 

 Ongoing reviews provide assurance that the processes in place are working effectively to 
ensure that quality is delivered on an audit by audit basis. This includes continuous 
monitoring of: 

 Engagement planning and supervision (preapproval of the audit scope, innovative 
best practices, budgeted hours, and assigned staff); 

 Standard working practices (including working paper procedures, sign off, report 
review, checklists to ensure that the audit process has been followed ); 

 Feedback from other clients and stakeholders; and 

 Analysing performance metrics to measure audit plan completion and stakeholder 
value. 

 

 

 

Page 135



 - 2 - 

Periodic reviews 

Periodic assessments are designed to assess conformance with Internal Audit’s Charter, 
the Standards, Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of Internal Auditing, Core Principles for 
the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the quality of the audit 
work and supervision, policies and procedures supporting the internal audit activity, the 
added value to the organisation and the achievement of performance standards. 

Periodic assessments will be conducted through: 

 Working paper reviews for conformance to the definition of Internal Auditing, Core 
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, the 
Standards, and internal audit policies and procedures; 

 Self-assessment of the internal audit activity with objectives established as part of 
the QAIP components – Governance, Professional Practice and Communication; 

 Review of internal audit performance measures and benchmarking of best 
practices. Periodic activity and performance reporting to the Audit Committee and 
other stakeholders as deemed necessary.  

 Annual self-review of conformance to the PSIAS. 

The periodic self assessment should identify the quality of ongoing performance and 
opportunities for improvement and to check and validate the objectives and criteria used in 
the QAIP.  The self assessment will be completed on an annual basis and the results 
reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management. 

External Assessment 

The External Assessment will consist of a broad scope of coverage that includes the 
following: 

 Conformance with the Standards, the Mission of Internal Audit, Definition of 
Internal Auditing, Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, 
the Code of Ethics and Internal Audit’s Charter, plans, policies, procedures, 
practices, and any applicable legislative and regulatory requirements; 

 Expectations of Internal Audit as expressed by the Audit Committee and Senior 
Management; 

 Integration of the Internal Audit activity into the governance process; 

 The mix of staff knowledge, experiences, and disciplines, including use of tools 
and techniques, and process improvements; and 

 A determination as to whether Internal Audit adds value and improves the 
Council’s operations. 

An external assessment will be conducted every five years by a qualified, independent 
assessor from outside the Council.  The assessment will be in the form of a full external 
assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external validation.  The format of the 
external assessment will be agreed with the Audit Committee and Chief Executive. 

Assessment scale 

The scale to assess the level of conformance of the internal audit activity with the 
standards is as follows: 

Generally Conforms / Partially Conforms / Does Not Conform 
(IIA Quality Assessment Manual Scale) 

 

 

 

Page 136



 - 3 - 

 Reporting on the Quality Program 

 Internal Assessments – reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management on an 
annual basis.  The internal assessment report will be accompanied by a written action 
plan in response to significant findings and recommendations contained in the report.  

 External Assessments – reported to the Audit Committee and Senior Management.  The 
external assessment report will be accompanied by a written action plan in response to 
significant findings and recommendations contained in the report.   

 Follow up – The Head of Audit will implement appropriate follow up actions to ensure that 
recommendations made in the reports and action plans developed are implemented in a 
reasonable timeframe. 

 

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Annual Governance Statement
	Appendix A 1 for Annual Governance Statement
	Appendix A 2 for Annual Governance Statement

	6 Statement of Accounts
	Appendix B for Statement of Accounts
	Appendix C for Statement of Accounts
	Appendix D for Statement of Accounts

	7 Redmond Review Update
	Appendix A 1 for Redmond Review Update

	8 Treasury Management Update
	Appendix A 1 for Treasury Management Update

	9 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Appendix A 1 for Internal Audit Progress Report

	10 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Appendix A 1 for Internal Audit Annual Report
	Appendix A 2 for Internal Audit Annual Report

	11 Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit
	Appendix A 1 for Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit
	Appendix A 2 for Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit


